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companies. Respondent moves that the subpoena be quashed on 
several grounds including (1) issuance of the adjudicative com
plaint precludes further proceedings under the subpoena issued 
pursuant to the Commission's rules pertaining to Part 2- investi
gations, (2) the subpoena amounts to the type of investigational 
demand allegedly prohibited by the Commission in All-State In
dustries of North Car.oli%a, 72 F.T.C. 1020, and (3) the subpoena 
is excessively burdensome. 

Without reaching the question of burdensomeness, 1 it is clear 
that the subpoena, having been issued under Part 2 of the rules, 
should be quashed without prejudice to renewal by complaint 
counsel before an administrative law judge under the applicable 
provisions of Part 3 of the Commission's Rules of Practice. Ac
cordingly, 

It is ordered, That the subpoena be, and it hereby is, quashed 
without prejudice to renewal before an administrative law judge 
under Part 3 of the Commission's Rules of Practice. 

IN THE MATTER OF 

RESORT CAR RENTAL SYSTEM, INC., ET AL. 

ORDER, OPINION, ETC., IN REGARD TO THE ALLEGED VIOLATION OF 

THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT 

Docket 8862. Complaint, Aug. 26, 1971-0rder & Opinion, July 31, 1973. 

Order requiring a Las Vegas, Nevada, automobile rental agency and sev
eral other agencies located in the Southwest, among other things to 
cease misrepresenting any price, fee, or amount imposed for rental of 
a motor vehicle; misrepresenting any method of computation of such 
charges; and using any misleading trade or corporate name. Order also 
dismisses complaint as to one corporate respondent . 

.. App-earances 

For the Commission: G. E. Wright, R. E. Stone. 
For the respondents: Orin G. Grossman, Las Vegas, Nevada. 

1 We note, however, that the AU-State opinion is not a basis for quashing a subopena. 
As we explained in a later "Supplemental Clarifying Opinion" in that case, 74 F.T.C. 
1591, the Commission's policy adverted to in the first All-State opinion-that its staff 
attorneys should ordinarily complete most of their evidence---gathering prior to issu
ance of a complaint-is an internal administrative guideline between the Commi,,ssion 
and its staff and does not constitute grounds to be raised in opposition to a subpoena 
that otherwise meets the requirements for subpoenas set forth in the Commission's 
Rules of Practice. 
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COMPLAINT 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission 
Act, and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the 
Federal Trade Commission having reason to believe that Resort 
Car Rental System, Inc., Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Brooks Dollar
A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., Bell Rent
A-Car, Inc., corporations, and Irving Bell, individually and as an 
officer of said corporations, hereinafter referred to as respond
ents, have violated the provisions of said Act, and it appearing to 
the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would 
be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint stating its 
charges in that respect as follows: · 

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Resort Car Rental System, Inc., 
is a Delaware corporation with its principal office at 401 South 
Third Street, Las Vegas, Nevada. 

Respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., is a Nevada corporation 
with its principal office at 3041 Las Vegas Boulevard South, Las 
Vegas, Nevada; it does business as Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent
A-Car in Las Vegas. 

Respondent Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., is an Ari
zona corporation with its principal office at 102 South 24th Street, 
Phoenix, Arizona; it does business as Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent
A-Car in Phoenix, Scottsdale, and Tucson, Arizona, and Albu
querque, New Mexico. 

Respondent Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., is a Colorado corpora
tion with its principal office at 7200 East Colfax Avenue, Denver, 
Colorado; it does business as Metro Car Rentals in Denver. 

Respondent Bell Rent-A-Car, Inc., is a Virgin Islands of the 
United States corporation with its principal office at Charlotte 
Amalie, St. Thomas, U'.S. Virgin Islands; it does business as Bell 
Rent-A-Car in St. Thomas and St. Croix. 

Respondent Irving Bell is an individual and officer of each of 
the corporate respondents. He formulates, directs and controls 
the acts and practices of the corporates respondents, including 
the acts and practices hereinafter set forth. His business address 
is the same as that of corporate respondent Resort Car Rental 
System, Inc. 

The aforementioned respondents cooperate and act together in 
carrying out the acts and practices hereinafter set forth. 

PAR. 2. Resp·ondents are now and have been engaged in the 
business of advertising for rent and rental of automobiles to the 
public. 
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PAR. 3. In the course and conduct of their business respond
ents are now, and have been, engaged in: 

(1) publishing and disseminating, and causing to be dissem
inated advertisements which are circulated in brochures, news
papers, and magazines in, among, and between the several states 
and territories ; 

(2) accepting· and confirming reservations for automobile 
rentals from prospective customers in states and territories out
side the state or territory of their principal place of business; 

(3) renting automobiles that are driven in, among, and be
tween the several states, and renting automobiles in one state 
which are authorized to be returned to and which are returned 
to respondents in other states. 

( 4) sending advertising, contracts, letters, checks, instructions 
and other written instruments and communications, teletyped 
communications, and oral communications between one another 
at their places of business in the several states and territories. 

Respondent Resort Car Rental System, Inc., wholly owns the 
other corporate respondents named in this complaint. Because of 
these relationships, rentals made in the several states and terri
tories by the subsidiary respondents are rentals by Resort in, 
among, and between the several states and territories. 

Respondent Resort, at its place of business in Nevada, derives 
income as a result of its ownership of the respondent subsidiaries 
located in other states and in territories. 

As a result of the foregoing, respondents maintain, and have 
maintained, a substantial course of trade in commerce, as "com
merce" is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act. 

PAR. 4. In the course and conduct of their business, and for the 
purpose of inducing others to rent their automobiles, respondents 
have made, and are now making, directly or by implication, in 
advertisements which they cause to be placed in brochures, news
papers and magazines various statements and representations 
concerning the amounts charged for automobile rentals. Attach
ments I and II ( pages 4 and 5 of this complaint) are typical and 
illustrative of such advertisements. 

PAR. 5. Through the use of the trade name "Brooks Dollar
A-Day Rent-A-Car," the corporate name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day 
Rent-A-Car, Inc." and the statements and representations set out 
in Paragraph Four and others of similar import and meaning, 
but not specifically set out herein, respondents have represented, 
and now are representing, directly or by implication: 
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1. That respondents rent automobiles for one dollar per day. 
2. That respondents rent automobiles for the dollar amounts 

set forth conspicuously in their advertisements (for example, 
Compacts for $5, Mustangs-Camaros for $7, Impalas-Fords for 
$8). 

3. That respondents rent automobiles for one dollar per day, 
plus an unspecified charge for each mile driven. 

4. That respondents rent automobiles for the dollar amounts 
set forth conspicuously in their advertisements (for example, 
Compacts for $5, Mustangs-Camaros for $7, Impalas-Fords for 
$8), plus a unspecified charge for each mile driven. 

PAR. 6. In truth and in fact: 
1. Respondents do not rent automobiles for one dollar per day, 

but in addition; 
(a) impose a cents-per-mile charge, 
(b) impose a minimum charge of 50 miles per day, at the cents

per-mile charge, whether or not the miles are actually driven. 
( c) impose a daily charge for insurance which covers collision 

damage to the automobile in excess of $50 unless the person rent
ing the automobile can demonstrate to the respondents' satisfac
tion the existence of an insurance policy which will provide full 
collision coverage for any damage done to respondents' vehicle. 

2. Respondents do not rent automobiles for the dollar amounts 
set forth conspicuously in their advertisements (for example, 
Compacts for $5, Mustangs-Camaros for $7, Impalas-Fords for 
$8) ; but in addition; 

· (a) impose a cents-per-mile charge, 
(b) impose a minimum charge of 50 miles per day, at the cents

per-mile charge, whether or not the miles are actually driven. 
( c) impose a daily charge for insurance which covers collision 

damage to the automobile in excess of $50 unless the person rent
ing the automobile can demonstrate to the respondents' satisfac
tion the existence of an insurance policy which will provide full 
collision coverage for any damage done to respondents' vehicle. 

3. Respondents do not rent automobiles for one dollar per day, 
plus an unspecified charge for each mile driven, but in addition; 

(a) impose a minimum charge of 50 miles per day, at the cents
per-mile charge, whether or not the miles are actually driven. 

(b) impose a daily charge for insurance which covers collision 
damage to the automobile in excess of $50 unless the person rent
ing the automobile can demonstrate to the respondents satisfac
tion the existence of an insurance policy which will provide full 
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collision coverage for any damage done to respondents' vehicle. 
4. That respondents do not rent automobiles for the dollar 

amounts set forth conspicuously in their advertisements (for 
example, Compact for $5, Mustangs-Camaros for $7, Impalas
Fords for $8), plus an unspecified charge for each mile driven, 
but in addition; 

(a) impose a minimum charge of 50 miles per day, at the cents
per-mile charge, whether or not the miles are actually driven. 

(b) impose a daily charge for insurance which covers collision 
damage to the automobile in excess of $50 unless the person rent
ing the automobile can demonstrate to the respondents' satisfac
tion the existence of an insurance policy which will provide full 
collision coverage for any damage done to respondents' vehicle. 

Therefore, the representations as set forth in Paragraphs Four 
and Five were and are false, misleading and deceptive. 

PAR. 7. Respondents in some advertisements include state
ments such as "plus min. miles," or "Daily Flat Rates & Weekly 
Free Mile Rates. Also 50 Miles Daily Min." Respondents rental 
contracts state in bold type "50 MILES DAILY MINIMUM." 
These statements, because of their context, size, and location are 
inconspicuous, vague, confusing, contradictory, and misleading. 

PAR. 8. In the normal course and conduct of their aforesaid 
business respondents' customers are required to sign a printed 
standard form rental agreement which is ambiguous, unclear and 
confusing. Such standard form rental agreements purport to 
obligate the customer signing it to pay the respondents a speci
fied amount of money in return for use of an automobile. How
ever, the format and contents of the aforesaid rental agreements 
are such that neither the exact amount nor the precise method 
for calculating the exact amount which the customer will be 
required to pay thereunder is clearly and conspicuously set out. 
Said forms, therefore, have the tendency and capacity to mislead 
and deceive customers signing the aforesaid rental agreements as 
to the amount they purportedly are thereby obligating themselves 
to pay respondents. 

Therefore, the representations, acts and practices, as set · 
forth in this paragraph, were and are misleading and deceptive. 

PAR. 9. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business, 
and at all times mentioned herein·, respondents have been, and 
now are, in substantial competition in commerce, with corpora- . 
tios, firms and individuals in the renting of automobiles of the 
same general kind and in the same general manner as respondents. 
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PAR. 10 The use by respondents of the aforesaid false, misle_ad
ing and deceptive statements, representations, acts and practices 
has the tendency and capacity to mislead and deceive members of 
the purchasing public into the erroneous and mistaken belief 
that said statements and representations were and are true and 
into the renting of substantial numbers of respondents' auto
mobiles by reason of said erroneous and mistaken belief. 

PAR. 11. The acts and practices of respondents, as herein al
leged were, and are, all to the prejudice and injury of the public 
and of respondents' competitors and constituted, and now consti
tute, unfair methods of competition in commerce, and unfair and 
deceptive acts and practices in commerce in violation of Section 5 
of the Federal Trade Commission Act. 

INITIAL DECISION BY EDGAR A. BUTTLE, 

ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE 

OCTOBER 24, 1972 
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PRELIMINARY COMMENT 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission 
Act, and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the 
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Federal Trade Commission issued a complaint on the 26th day 
of August A.D., 1971, charging respondents herein with certain 
deceptive practices incident to the renting and leasing of auto
mobiles and the advertising thereof, including the terms under 
which such automobiles could be rented or leased. 

At the request of counsel for the purpose of receiving into the 
record further testimony of Mr. Leonard Provenzale, the case 
was reopened by order on July 17, 1972. 

The administrative law judge has carefully considered the 
proposed findings of fact, and conclusions supplemented by briefs, 
submitted by complaint counsel and counsel for respondents. The 
following findings and conclusions if not herein adopted either 
in the form proposed or in substance are rejected as not supported 
by the record or as involving immaterial matters. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. Respondent Resort Car Rental System, Inc., is a Delaware 
corporation with its principal place of business at 401 South 
Third Street, Las Vegas,·Nevada (admitted, Respondents' Answer, 
Paragraph One). 

2. Respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., is a Nevada corpora
tion with its principal office located at 3041 Las Vegas Boulevard 
South, Las Vegas, Nevada; it does business as Brooks Dollar-A
Day Rent-A-Car in Las Vegas, Nevada (admitted, Respondents' 
Answer, Paragraph One). 

3. Respondent Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent"'.'A-Car, Inc., is an 
Arizona corporation with its principal office formerly located 
at 102 South 24th Street, Phoenix, Arizona; it has done business 
as Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car in Phoenix, Scottsdale, and 
Tuscon, Arizona, and Albuquerque, New Mexico ( admitted, Re
spondents' "Response -to Request for Admissions," dated Decem
ber 30, 1971, Paragraphs 1 and 2) .1 Said firm is not presently 
doing business (Respondents' Answer, Paragraph One). 

4. Respondent Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., is a Colorado corpo
ration with its principal office formerly located at 7200 East 
Colfax Avenue, Denver, Colorado; it has done business ~s Metro 
Car Rentals in Denver, Colorado (First Admissions, Paragraphs 
3 and 4). Said firm is not presently doing business (Respondents' 
Answer, Paragraph One). 

5. Respondent Bell Rent-A-Car, Inc., was a wholly-owned sub
sidiary of respondent Resort Car Rental System, I:hc. ( First Ad-

1 Hereinafter referred to as "First Admissions." 
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missions, Paragraph 34), but was no longer owned, in whole or 
in part, by any of the above respondents and/ or respondent 
Irving Bell, as of the date of respondents' answer in this matter 
(Respondents' Answer, Paragraph One). 

6. Respondent Irving Bell is an individual and is an officer 
of corporate respondent Resort Car Rental System, Inc. He be-

. came president of said firm in 1968, and has continuously occu
pied that position to the present time ( admitted, Respondents' 
"Response to Second Request for Admissions," dated March 17, 
1972, Paragraph 30) 2 ; he became a member of the board of 
directors of said firm in 1969, and has continuously occupied such 
position to the present time (Second Admissions, Paragraph 35). 
Respondent Bell is and was an officer of respondent Brooks Rent
A-Car, Inc. (First Admissions, Paragraph 11 and 12) ; he became 
a member of the board of directors of said firm in or previous to 
1962, and has continuously occupied such position to the present 
time (Second Admissions, Paragraph 27). Respondent Bell is 
and was an officer of Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., (First Admis
sions, Paragraphs 19 and 20). Respondent Bell became president 
of respondent Bell Rent-A-Car in 1969, and continuously occupied 
that position until the sale of respondent Bell Rent-A-Car, Inc, by 
Resort Car Rental System, Inc. (Second Admissions, Paragraph 
34). 

As of July 15, 1968, respondent Bell was the sole capital stock
holder of respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. Respondent Brooks 
Rent-A-Car, Inc., on January 20, 1969, became a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of respondent Resort Car Rental System, Inc., and 
is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of said respondent (First Ad
missions, Paragraphs 28 and 29). As of June 27, 1969, there were 
issued and outstanding 950,000 voting shares of capital stock of 
respondent Resort Car Rental System, Inc. (Second Admissions, 
Paragraph 40) . Of this number, respondent Bell on said date 
owned 438,633 voting shares (Second Admissions, Paragraph 
41), and relatives of respondent Bell on said date owned 124,000 
voting shares ( Second Admissions, Paragraphs 43, 44, and 45) . 

Thus, respondent Bell has been in a position to control the acts 
and practices of the respondent corporations, through his posi
tions as an officer of said corporations, as a member of the board 
of directors of said corporations, and he has been in a position to 
control the acts and practices of respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, 
Inc., through his sole ownership of said firm, from no later than 

2 Hereinafter referred to as "Second Admissions." 
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July 15, 1968, until the acquisition of said firm by Resort Car 
Rental System, Inc., on January 20, 1969, and through his sub
stantial shareholdings of voting stock in respondent Resort Car 
Rental System, Inc., after that date (he held nearly a majority 
of such shares individually, and his holdings considered together 
with his relatives' holdings, constituted a majority) .3 

Additionally, respondent Bell created and has had responsibility 
for and control over the advertisements utilized by the corporate 
respondents which are challenged in this proceeding. 

Witness Michael Miller designed one of the principal types of 
advertisements utilized by respondents (Miller, Tr. 291-292). 
A typical advertisement of this type is CX 27-X (see Tr. 289-
292). This advertisement was originally designed· by Mr. Mille1 
under the personal instructions of respondent Bell in 1966 or 
1967 (Miller, Tr. 293-295). Particularly, respondent Bell in
structed Mr. Miller as to the elements which were to go into the 
design of the advertisement, including the box for prices (Miller, 
Tr. 294-295), the use of the dollar symbol (Miller, Tr. 295), and 
the use of the trade name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car" 
(Miller, Tr. 294). 

Respondent Bell has on a number of occasions personally in
structed Mr. Miller to make changes from the basic format 
(CX 17-X) of the advertisements prepared for respondent 
Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. (Miller, Tr. 295-298). Changes which 
respondent Bell instructed Mr. Miller to make related to matters 
such as price changes, new locations (Miller, Tr. 296), credit 
cards, "specials" (Miller, Tr. 297-298), and the size of the words 
"Dollar-A-Day" (Miller, Tr. 302). Other than these specific 
changes the basic advertisement would remain the same following 
these instructions for change (Miller, Tr. 298), including the dol
lar rate (Miller, Tr. 297). Respondent Bell thus repeatedly per
sonally involved himself in the various versions of the advertis
ing copy he instructed Mr. Miller to create, all of which changes 
continued to contain the basic deceptive elements challenged in 
this proceeding. 

In addition, respondent Bell on numerous occasions between 
1964 and 1970, personally instructed Mr. Miller to adapt the 
basic format (CX 27-X) of the advertising prepared by Mr. 
Miller, for use by firms in ,other localities, such as Phoenix; Los 
Angeles; Hawaii; Freeport, Bahamas; St. Croix and St. Thomas, 

3 See Fred Meyer, Inc. v. F'J'C, 35!) F.2d 351 3{;7-368 (9th Cir. 19(Hi), cert. denied, 
386 U.S. 908 (1967) wherein respondents were held individually responsible based 
primarily on their ownership of stock, and positions of authority in the corporation. 
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Virgin Islands; and Miami (Miller, Tr. 304-308). These adapta
tions for other localities contained the basic design of Brooks
Rent-A-Car, Inc. format including in some cases the large numeral 
one (Miller, Tr. 307-308). 

Robert R. Campbell, publisher of the Vegas Visitor, testified 
that Mr. Bell has from· time to time personally instructed him to 
insert advertising in said newspaper, such as that contained in 
CX 26-B (Campbell, Tr. 327-329, 333), and that such advertising 
was inserted in the Vegas Visitor pursuant to such instructions 
(Campbell, Tr. 326-327) .4 

7. The aforementioned respondents cooperate and act together 
in carrying out the acts and practices hereinafter set forth. Re
spondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. on January 20, 1969, became 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of respondent Resort Car Rental Sys
tem, Inc., and is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of said respondent 
(First Admissions, Paragraphs 28 and 29). Respondent Brooks 
Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., on September 20, 1969, became 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of respondent Resort Car Rental Sys
tem, Inc. and is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of said respondent 
(First Admissions, Paragraphs 30 and 31). Respondent Metro
politan Leasing, Inc. on August 31, 1969, became a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of respondent Resort Car Rental System, Inc., and is 
now a wholly-owned subsidiary of said respondent (First Admis
sions, Paragraphs 32 and 33). Respondents have rented automo
biles in one state which were authorized to and which were 
returned to respondents in other states (First Admissions, Para
graph 59). Respondents have sent advertising copy, contracts, 
letters, checks, instructions and/or other written instruments or 
communications, teletype communications, and oral communica
tions between one another at their respective places of business 
in the several states and territories (First _Admissions, Para
graph 60). 

8. Respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., has, and presently 
is, engaged in the business of rental of automobiles to the con
suming public (Second Admissions, Paragraphs 1 and 2). In the 
course and conduct of its business, it has advertised and presently 

4 Hespondent Irving Bell':,; re:,;ponsibility and personal participation are clearly suf
ficient to include him in his individual, as well as his representative, capacity under a 
Commission cease and desist order. See criterion enunciated in United States v. Wise, 
H70 l:.8. 405. -Il(i (l!JH~) rnlPd by tile Commissiou ·to be applicable to cai-;es b·,·ought 
under the I◄'edeml Trade Commission Act in Curo, Inc., Dkt. No. 8346, 63 F'l'C 1164, 
1204 (19Ga); Oeneral 1'ran.srnission Corp., Dkt. No. 8713, 73 F'l'C 399, 431-432 (1968), 
ajJ'd, 40<i F.2d 227 UM Cir.), cert. denied, 895 U.S. 986 (1969). See al.~o Fred Aleycr, 
Inc. v. F1'C .. supra, note 3. 
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advertises that it rents automobiles to the consuming public (Sec
ond Admissions, Paragraphs 3 and 4). 

Corporate respondents, Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., 
Phoenix, Arizona, and Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., Denver, Colo
rado, have engaged in the business of rental of automobiles to 
the consuming public ( Second Admissions, Paragraphs 5 and 7). 
In the course and conduct of their businesses, they have adver
tised that they rent automobiles to the consuming public (Second 
Admissions, Paragraphs 6 and 8) . 

9. Respondents maintain, and have maintained substantial 
course of trade in commerce, as "commerce" is defined in the 
Federal Trade Commission Act. 5 

In the course and conduct of their business respondents Resort 
Car Rental System, Inc., Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., and Irving 
Bell are now and have been engaged in disseminating, and causing 
to be disseminated, advertisments which are circulated in bro
chures, newspapers, and magazines, in, among, and between the 
several states. For at least the last five years, all issues of the 
Vegas Visitor, presently a weekly newspaper published in Las 
Vegas, Nevada, have carried on the back page, advertisements for 
respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. (Campbell, Tr. 342-343). 
These advertisements have been inserted in the Vegas Visitor 
pursuant to instructions from respondent Bell, or representa
tives or agents of respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. ( Camp
bel], Tr. 326-329, 333, 336, 338, 341). The following issues 
of the Vegas Visitor were received in evidence: August 23, 1968 
(CX 25-A and 25-B) 6 ; June 6, 1969 (CX 26-A to 26-P); Novem
ber 6, 1970 (CX 27-A to 27-Z); June 4, 1971 (CX 29-A to 29-T); 
October 8, 1971 (CX 30----A to 30-X); October 22, 1971 (CX 31-A 
to CX 31-T); and May 5, 1972 (CX 548-A and 548-B). Robert 
R. Campbell, publisher of the Vegas Visitor, testified that 6000-
7000 copies of Vegas Visitor newspaper are distributed weekly 

Ii Interstate commerce is not only the sale of goods but also includes the importation 
from one state to another of information with a commercial purpose. Progress Tailor
ing Go. v. PTO, 153 F.2d 103, 105 ( 7th Cir. 1946). The Commission has expressly held 
that advertising across state lines, without proof of interstate sales, is sufficient to 
establish Con1mission jurisdiction under Section 5. Surrey Sleep Products, Inc., 73 F'I.'C 
523, 554 (1968); S. Klein Dcpartmen-t Stores, Inc., 57 IJ'TC 1543, 1544 (1960). Re
spondents' transactions with customers do involve interstate commerce. See Safewa11 
Stores, Inc. v. F'TC, 366 F.2d 795 (9th Cir. 1966) ; Asheville '.l'obacco Board of Trade, 
foe. v. FTC, 263 F.2d 502 (4th Cir. 1959). 

0 This exhibit was currently recPived into evidence as CX 25-A and B ( 'l'r. 155, 157). 
However, the exhibit itself has been incorrectly marked as CX 549 A-L. 
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to restaurants in California which are on the highway from Los 
Angeles to Las Vegas (Campbell, Tr. 347, 349-350). Mr. Campbell 
had personally distributed the Vegas Visitor to these California 
points, and seen them in restaurants (Campbell, Tr. 349). The 
record also contains an information sheet which was in use about 
two years prior to the trial which indicates distribution to the 
following California cities: Victorville, Barstow, Yermo, and 
Baker (CX 550; Campbell, Tr. 356-358). Mr. Campbell furthen 
testified that 5,000 copies of Vegas Visitor newspaper with special 
TWA covers ( e.g., CX 30-A to 30-X) are published and distrib
uted to Trans World Airlines (TWA) each week (Campbell, Tr. 
350). Claude M. Rand, sales manager for TWA in Las Vegas, 
Nevada, testified that he made arrangements with Campbell for 
delivery of 5,000 Vegas Visitor newspapers per week (Rand, Tr. 
409). He arranged for these newspapers to be labeled with the 
cities of ultimate destination, e.g., Chicago, New York, Pittsburgh 
(Rand, Tr. 409-410). Mr. Rand further testified that he had 
personally seen Vegas Visitor newspapers in Boston, New York, 
Pittsburgh, and Chicago, available to the publk (Rand, Tr. 410-
411). Campbell testified that 3,500 copies of Vegas Visitor news
paper with special Frontier Airlines covers (e.g., CX 31-A to 
31-T) are published and distributed to Frontier Airlines each 
week (Campbell, Tr. 350). M. L. Martin, station manager for 
Frontier Airlines in Las Vegas, Nevada, testified that bundles of 
Vegas Visitor newspapers are received by him each week (Martin, 
Tr. 404-405). These bundles are already labeled with the destina
tion cities-Denver, St. Louis, Kansas City, Billings, Dallas, 
Omaha (Martin, Tr. 406). Martin loads the bundles on airplanes 
to Denver where they are reloaded onto other airplanes going 
to their final destination (Martin, Tr. 404-405). Martin personally 
has seen bundles of Vegas Visitor newspapers in Denver, Colo
rado (Martin, Tr. 405). A special cover issue of Vegas Visitor 
was until about two years prior to the hearing of this matter, 
distributed to Delta Airlines ( Campbell, Tr. 356; see CX 550). 

Advertisements for respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., have 
been printed in a publication entitled Las Vegas Showtime ( CX 
23; Genuineness Admitted, Respondents' Response to Request to 
Admit Genuineness, dated March 17, 1972, Paragraphs 4 and 5) .7 

Las Vegas Showtime has been distributed to the firms listed on 
the addressees which is part of the record of this proceeding 
( Genuineness, Paragraph 8) which are located in various loca-

7 Hereinafter referred to as "Genuineness." 
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tions in the United States outside of the State of Nevada, by office 
personnel at the office of respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., 
Fashion Square, Las Vegas, Nevada ( First Admissions, Para
graph 54). A September 1970 issue of Las Vegas Showtime pub
lication containing an advertisement for respondent Brooks Rent
A-Car, Inc., was distributed by Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., to the 
firms listed on the above-described list of addressees (First 
Admissions, Paragraph 57). An issue of Las Vegas Showtime 
purporting to be the "September" issue, and containing an ad
vertisement identical to that printed in the above-described Sep
tember 1970 issue of Las Vegas Showtime was obtained on request 
in San Francisco, California, from one of the addressees shown 
on the above-referred to list of addressees (Wright, Tr. 171-174; 
ex 23). 

An advertisement for respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., has 
been printed in a publication entitled Aloft (Brainerd, Tr. 247-
248, CX 36). The Aloft publication was obtained by Andrew W. 
Brainerd from a passenger seat pocket of a National Airlines 
airplane, which Mr. Brainerd was traveling on from Los Angeles, 
California to Tampa, Florida in 1968 (Brainerd, Tr. 247-248). 
Mr. Brainerd relied on said advertisement when he subsequently 
arrived in Las Vegas, Nevada, in deciding to contact respondent 
Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., about a car rental (Brainerd, Tr. 253-
254). 

An advertisement for respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., has 
been printed in a publication entitled Western's World (CX 37). 
The Western's World publication was obtained by Gerald E. 
Wright from a passenger seat pocket of a Western's Airlines air
plane, which Mr. Wright was traveling on from San Francisco, 
California, to Las Vegas, Nevada, in 1970 (Wright, Tr. 169-170). 

Respondents have accepted and confirmed reservations for auto"' 
mobile rentals from prospective customers who have written or 
telephoned respondents from states and/or territories outside the 
states and/or territory of respondents' respective principle places 
of business ( First Admissions, Paragraph 58). 

Respondents have rented automobiles that were driven in, 
among, and between the several states, and have rented automo
biles in one state which were authorized to and which were re
turned to respondents in other states (First Admissions, Para
graph 59; see ,als,o Provenzale, Tr. 212-213). 

Respondents have sent advertising copy, contracts, letters, 
checks, instructions, teletype communications, and oral communi-
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cations between one another at their respective places of business 
in the several states and territories (First Admissions, Para
graph 60). More particularly, Mr. Miller, who designed adver
tising copy under the direction of respondents Res'ort Car Rental 
System, Inc., Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., and Irving Bell (Miller, 
Tr. 293-299, 303-308), has at the direction of said respondents 
prepared advertising copy for local offices of respondents in the 
following locations: Phoenix; Los Angeles; Hawaii; Freeport, 

' Bahamas; and St. Croix and St. Thomas, U.S. Virgin Islands 
(Miller, Tr. 303-309). 

10. In the course and conduct of their business, and for the 
purpose of inducing others to rent their automobiles, respondents 
have made and are now making, directly or by implication, in 
advertisements which they cause to be placed in brochures, news
papers and magazines, various statements and representations 
concerning the amounts charged for automobile rentals (admitted, 
Respondents' Answer, Paragraph 4; se.e also CX 25-A and B, CX 
26 A-P, CX 27 A-Z, CX 29 A-T, CX 548-A and B, CX 30 A-X, 
CX 31 A-T, CX 23, CX 36, CX 37 [advertisements by respondent 
Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc.], CX 132, CX 133 and 134 [advertise
ments by respondent Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc.], CX 
141, CX 142 and 143, CX 144 and 145 [advertisements by respond
ent Metropolitan Leasing, Inc.]). The following advertisements 
are typical and illustrative of such statements and representa
tions: 

11. Through the use of the trade name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day 
Rent-A-Car," the corporate name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent
A-Car, Inc." and the statements and representations referred to 
in Paragraph 10, supr.a, and in others of similar import and mean
ing, respondents have represented, and now are representing, 
directly or by implication, that respondents rent automobiles for· 
one dollar per day. 

Respondents' advertising (CX 25-A to 25-B, CX 26-A to 26-P, 
CX 27-A to 27-Z, CX 29-A to T, CX 548-A to 548-B, CX 30-A 
to X, CX 31-A to T, CX 23, CX 35, CX 37, CX 132, CX 133 ancl 
134, CX 141, CX 142 and 143, CX 144 and CX 145) creates an 
impression that respondents rent automobiles for one dollar per 
day. The symbol "$1" and the trade name "Dollar-A-Day," by 
virtue of their placement in the advertisements, their dominant 
size and their contrasting coloring has a tendency to and does 
create this impression. This conclusion can be sufficiently estab
lished from a reading of the advertisements without the testimony 
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- . - . . -•--···---, 
---A-ENT A CAR In 
.· VEGAS 
.·. PC~OEE\JDX 
·:and DENVER 

(CX 37, p. 34) 

of consumers witnesses. 8 However, the testimony of two consumer 
witnesses, Leonard Provenzale and Andrew W. Brainerd, n shows 
that they interpreted respondents' advertisements in this same 
manner. This fact was vividly demonstrated by the following 
testimony of Leonard Provenzale, a consumer witness, testifying 
about a Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. newspaper advertisement which 
attracted his attention on his arrival in Las Vegas for a vacation 
(Provenzale, Tr. 201-204) : 

Q. How did you learn about Brooks Rent-A-Car Agency? 

8 See Zenith Nadfo Corp. v. F1'C, 143 F.2d 29, at 31 (7th Cir. 1944). 
0 Provenzale iH presently a police officer with a college degree plus one year of law 

sdwol (l'roYPnzale. Tr. lH!l). Brainerd - is a J>ractieing attorn<'y and has beeu for oYer 
20 ;years (Brainerd, 'l'r. 24fi_24G). 'l'herefore, even those of above average intelligence 
and sophistication interpret resriondents' a<lvertisements in this manner. 
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A. Well, when I got off the plane at the airport I was given--

* * * * * * * 
A. And I was given a handout-two newspapers. And I saw the ad in the 

newspaper. 
Q. Do you recall what the names of the magazine was-the newspaper? 
A. No, I don't, really. It was a free newspaper, I know that. It advertised 

all the shows in town. 

* * 
Q. Can you describe the ad that you saw in the newspaper that you just 

mentioned? 
A. Yes. 

* 
A. It said, "Rent an economy car for a dollar a day." And it was in old 

(sic) letters on the rear of the newspaper on the last page. 
Q. Do you remember anything else about the ad? 
A. Well, the thing that caught my eye was the big $1.00 sign. 

* * * * 
A. Just that I remember it said in big red letters: "Rent an Economy Car 

·For a Dollar a Day." 
HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: Yes. And that is all you recall? 
THE WITNESS: That's right. 
HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: And is that all you recall? 
THE WITNESS: That is, to that ad. 
HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: To that particular ad; is that right'? 
THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor. 

* * * * * 
HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: Did it say-do you know what periodi

cal you saw? 
THE WITNESS: I think it was called "Las Vegas Visitor," or "Vegas . 

Visitor." 

Mr. Provenzale was further attracted to respondent Brooks 
Rent-A-Car, Inc., by a huge sign in a store front window near 
his hotel, which read: "Rent an Economy Car for $1.00 a day" 
(Tr. 205-206). 

Mr. Provenzale proceeded to contact respondent Brooks Rent
A-Car, Inc. on the assumption that he could save transportation 
money by renting a car at $1 per day, instead of taking taxicabs 
(Tr. 214-215) : 

Q. You rented the vehicle, you testified on June 29th. And what did you do 
for transportation on June 28th, J;he first day you were there? 

A. Well, the first day I was here I took cabs from one hotel to the other. 

* * * * * * 
HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: But, you took cabs, and the cab cost 

you more than a dollar a day, didn't they? 
THE WITNESS: That is the reason I rented the car. 
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Mr. Provenzale contacted respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., 
from a telephone in an unoccupied office of respondent, located 
near his hotel. Respondent sent out a car, which picked up Mr. 
Provenzale and his wife and drove them to another office, where 
the rental was consummated. It is clear that Mr. Provenzale was 
transported to this office, believing that he could rent a car for 
a $1 per day (Tr. 209) : 

Q. What transpired at the office where you were transported to? 
HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: Well, tell us what happened. Tell us 

what they said to you and what you said to them, and what you did and 
they did; that is all. 

THE WITNESS: Well, I went to this office. And I said, "I want to rent a 
car for a dollar a day." 

So he said, "Okay." 
And I said, "What is the gimmick," and the man handed me-the man 

at the counter said, "There is no gimmick. It is a dollar a day plus 13 cents 
a mile." 

Andrew W. Brainerd, another consumer witness, interpreted 
an advertisement by respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. in Aloft 
Magazine (CX 36) to indicate that a mileage charge would be 
included. He nevertheless gave great credence to the "dollar-a
day" representation since he believed that his rental charge would 
not substantially exceed $1 per day, if he drove the rented auto
mobile a limited distance ( Brainerd, Tr. 253) : 

Q. When you read it what was your interpretation of what you read? 
A. I read what it said there, and I believe I could rent a car for $1.00 a 

day plus mileage cost. 

At the time he rented the automobile from respondent Brooks 
Rent-A-Car, Inc., he interrogated respondent's agent and learned 
of an additional charge for insurance of $1 per day (Brainerd, 
Tr. 254). Mr. Brainerd could calculate that even "Brooks Two 
Dollars-A-Day" was a good buy, on the assumption that he could 
keep charges for mileage negligible. That Mr. Brainerd made 
such a calculation can be inferred from his actions (Brainerd, 
Tr. 255-256): 

HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: Well, you did rent the car? 
THE WITNESS: I did rent the car, yes. 
HEARING EXAMINER: Yes. 
THE WITNESS: I drove for four days-or a little less because I came 

back, I believe, in the morning. 
At the time I rented the car I (sic) had asked for and received from me 

a deposit of $30. 
When I brought the car back I figured that I had paid a dollar a day for 

the car and a dollar a day for the insurance. 
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HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: You assumed it was to be a dollar 
each day for the insurance? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. They told me that it was. 
HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: All right. 
THE WITNESS: And that I had driven the car 54 miles and-at 11 cents 

per mile. 
So I figured this came to approximately $14. And I therefore waited for 

the bill. And the man said, "That will be -" something like 90 cents-in 
addition to the deposit. 

And I said, "There must be a mistake here because when I rented the 
car I asked if there were any additions and I was told that it was 11 cents 
a mile plus the $2.00 a day for the car and the insurance. 

He then told me-and it was the first time that I had been told that-that 
there was a minimum mileage charge each day of 50 miles at 11 cents a mile 
whether you used the car at all . 

. . . So that the hill, acording to his calculation was $30.90." 

On cross-examination, Brainerd further testified (Brainerd, 
Tr. 266): 

Q. So, in other words, you felt that if you took the car and parked it 
somewhere for 30 days, that total amount you would be charged would be 
$30 plus the mileage from the office where you rented it and back again; 
is that correct? 

A. If I wanted to drive it zero miles, yes-or minimum number, yes, that 
is exactly correct, sir. 

This is further established by reference to the tabulation of 
respondents' rental agreements (see Finding No. 12). In the 
sampling of January 1970, Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. rental agree
ments, 95 percent of the renters were charged a 50 mile minimum 
per day, yet of these, 74.2 percent did not drive the 50 mile mini
mum per day. In fact, 39.7 percent did not drive 25 miles per day 
and 18.5 percent did not even drive 15 miles per day. Similarly, 
these high percentages appear in the May-June 1970, Brooks 
Rent-A-Car, Inc. tabulation. It is unlikely a renter would know
ingly pay for something he is not going to use. The tabulations 
show a high percentage of renters were indeed charged for some
thing they did not use. Therefore, it is proper to conclude that 
respondents' advertisements do not inform prospective renters 
of a 50 mile minimum per day charge but instead create the im
pression in their minds that respondents' vehicles can be rented 
for $1 per day. 

12. In truth and in fact, respondents do not rent automobiles 
for one dollar per day, but in addition: 

(a) impose a cents-per-mile charge, 
(b) impose a minimum charge of 50 miles per day, at the cents

per-mile charge, whether or not the miles are actually driven, 
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( c) impose a daily charge for insurance which covers collision 
damage to the automobile in excess of $50 unless the person rent
ing the automobile can demonstrate to the respondents' satisfac
tion the existence of an insurance policy which will provide full 
collision coverage for any damage done to respondents' vehicle. 

Respondents admit that they impose a cents-per-mile charge 
in connection with their one dollar per day rentals (Respondents' 
Answer, par. 6 (1) (a)). This was confirmed by the testimony 
of the two consumer witnesses. (Provenzale, Tr. 217-218; Brain
erd, Tr. 255-256) ; in the case of Mr. Provenzale, it is further 
confirmed by an examination of the rental agreement Mr. Proven
zale retained after completion of this rental (eX 547). An ex
amination of the rental agreements received in the record of this 
proceeding (eX 46-A to 46-Z-269, ex 47-A to 47-Z-273, ex 
48-A to 48-Z-26, ex 49-A to 49-Z-25, CX 51-A to 51-Z-26) 10 

discloses that a cents-per-mile charge was made on all rentals 
involving use of the 50 mile per day minimum rate structure. The 
invoices also show that the vast majority of the rentals on a 
"fifty mile minimum per day" basis involved one dollar per day 
rentals. 

That the "fifty mile minimum per day" rate structure is ap"." 
plied by respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. to consumers who 
answer said respondents "dollar-a-day" advertising is established 
by the testimony of consumer witnesses Provenzale (Tr. 217-218) 
and Brainerd (Tr. 255-256). This is further established by refer
ence to the following tabulations : 11 

Tabulation of Extent of Use of "50 Mile 
Minimum Per Day" Rate Structure; Extent of 

Overpayment by Consumers Who Paid Pursuant to 
"50 Mile Minimum Per Day" Rate Structure 

BROOKS RENT-A-CAR, INC. 
LAS VEGAS, NEV ADA 

IN JANUARY, 1970 

(Tabulation based upon rental agreements (CX 46-A to 46-Z-269)) 

1. Total number of rental agreements 
2. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day 

NUMBER PERCENTAGE 
278 

264 95.0 

10 Excluded from this evaluation are the Metropolitan Leasing, Inc. invoices for 
.January 1'.l70 (CX ;30--A to ::i0--Z--2fi). which are in a different format, and appear to 
involve a different type of rental arrangement. 

11 The methodology used by complaint counsel in compiling this tabulation is referred 
to in the conclusions. 
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NUMBER PERCENTAGE 
3. Consumers charged 50 mile mm1mum per 

day, who did not drive 50 miles per day 
4. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 25 miles per day 
5. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 15· miles per day 
6. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 10 miles per day 

* * 

196 

105 

49 

16 

* 

BROOKS RENT-A-CAR, INC. 
LAS VEGAS, NEV ADA 

MAY-JUNE, 1970 

74.2 

39.7 

18.5 

6.0 

.,. :>:< 

(Tabulation based upon rental agreements CX 47-A to 47-Z-273) 

1. Total number of rental agreements 
2. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day 
3. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 50 miles per day 
4. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 25 miles per day 
5. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 15 miles per day 
6. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 10 miles per day 

* * 

NUMBER 
286 

264 

184 

115 

49 

18 

.,. * 

PERCENTAGE 

92.3 

69.6 

43.5 

18.5 

6.8 

* 

BROOKS DOLLAR-A-DAY RENT-A-CAR, INC. 
PHOENIX, ARIZONA 
IN JANUARY, 1970 

(Tabulation based upon rental agreements CX 48-A to 48-Z-26) 

1. Total number of rental agreements 
2. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day 
3. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 50 miles per day 
4. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 25 miles per day 
5. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 15 miles per day 
6. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 10 miles per day 

* * * * 

NUMBER PERCENTAGE 
44 

31 70.5 

12 38.7 

2 6.4 

0 0 

0 0 

* * * 
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BROOKS DOLLAR-A-DAY RENT-A-CAR, INC. 
PHOENIX, ARIZONA 

IN JUNE, 1970 

(Tabulation based upon rental agreement CX 49-A to 49-Z-2,5) 

NUMBER 
1. Total number of rental agreements 
2. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day 
3. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 50 miles per day 
4. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 25 miles per day 
5. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 15 miles per day 
6. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 10 miles per day 

* 

49 

48 

17 

2 

0 

0 

... 

METROPOLITAN LEASING, INC 
DENVER, COLORADO 

IN JUNE, 1970 

:-;: 

PERCENTAGE 

98.0 

35.4 

4.1 

0 

0 

* 

(Tabulation based upon rental agreements CX 51-A to 51-Z-26) 

1. Total number of rental agreements 
2. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day 
3. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day who did not drive 50 miles per day 
4. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 25 miles per day 
5. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 15 miles per day 
6. Consumers charged 50 mile minimum per 

day, who did not drive 10 miles per day 

* * * * 

NUMBER PERCENTAGE 
48 

41 85.4 

6 14.6 

2 4.8 

1 2.4 

1 2.4 

* * * 
These tabulations, based upon the sampling of respondents' 

invoices ref erred to in the previous finding, demonstrate the ex
tent to which the "fifty mile minimum per day" rate structure 
is applied to customers. In the sampling of January 1970, Brooks 
Rent-A-Car, Inc. rental agreements, 95 percent of the agreements 
utilized the "50 mile minimum per day" rate structure. In the 
sampling of May-June 1970, Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. rental 
agreements, 92.3 percent of the agreements utilized the "50 mile 
minimum per day" rate structure. Similarly, high percentages 
appear in the other tabulations. The tabulations represent a valid 
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sampling of respondents' contracts, it is proper to conclude there
from that the vast majority of respondents' contracts, involve 
rentals pursuant to the "50 mile minimum per day" rate struc
ture. Since the evidence indicates that the predominant rate struc
ture advertised by respondent is its "dollar-a-day" rate, it is also 
proper to conclude that the "fifty mile minimum per day" rate 
structure must be applied to contracts executed by persons re
sponding to such advertising. The invoices show that the vast 
majority of the rentals on a "fifty mile minimum per day" basis 
involved one dollar per day rentals. 

A sampling of respondents' rental agreements were introduced 
into evidence (CX 46-A, CX 51-Z-26). A tabulation 12 of these 
rental agreements illustrates that consumers purchased collision 
damage insurance in a very high percentage of cases. This is 
particularly true with respect to respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, 
Inc. These statistics further support their evidence that the pur
chase of collision insurance from respondents is virtually manda
tory for protective purposes. 

Extent of Purchase by Consumers of Collision Damage Insurance 

Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Las Vegas, Nevada, in Jaunary, 1970 
(Tabulation based upon rental agreements CX 46-A to 46-Z-269) 

1. Total number of rental agreements 
2. Consumers charged for collision damage 

insurance 

* * * * 

NUMBER PERCENTAGE 
278 

271 97.5 

* * * 
Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Las Vegas, Nevada, in May and June, 1970 

(Tabulation based upon rental agreements CX 47-A to 47-Z-2-73) 

NUMBER PERCENTAGE 
1. Total number of rental agreements 286 
2. Consumers charged for collision damage 

insurance 272 95.1 

* * * * * * * 

Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., Phoenix, Arizona, in January, 1970 
(Tabulation based upon rental agreements CX 48-Z to 48-Z-26) 

1. Total number of rental agreements 
2. Consumers charged collision damage 

insurance 

NUMBER PERCENTAGE 
44 

27 61.4 

13 The complaint counsel methodology used in compiling this tabulation is set forth 
at pag-p::; 44-48. 
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* * * * * * * 
Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., Phoenix, Arizona, in June, 1970 

(Tabulation based upon rental agreements CX 49-A to 49-Z-25) 

1. Total number of rental agreements 
2. Consumers charged collision damage 

insurance 

* * * 

NUMBER PERCENTAGE 
49 

44 89.8 

* * 

Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., Denver, Colorado, in June, 1970 
(Tabulation based upon rental agreements CX 51-A to 51-Z-26) 

1. Total number of rental agreements 
2. Consumers charged collision damage 

insurance 

* * * 

NUMBER PERCENTAGE 
48 

25 52.1 

* * 

Witness Brainerd testified that he was required to purchase 
respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc.'s insurance (Brainerd, Tr. 
254): 

And when I got to the office I asked again-I told them that I called 
them up about the car and that I wished to rent a Volkswagen. And I said, 
"I understand it is a dollar a day." And they said, "Yes, it is a dollar a day." 

And I said, "Are there any other charges?" And they said, "You must also 
pay a dollar a day insurance." And I said-

HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: A dollar a day insurance, not a dollar 
and a half? 

THE WITNESS: No, sir. It was a dollar a day for the car and a dollar 
a day for the insurance. 

There was no option as to whether I wished to take the insurance; I must 
take the insurance if I wanted to rent that car. 

Another consumer witness purchased the insurance, but could 
not say definitely whether it was required (Tr. 210, 220). He 
felt impelled, however, to buy it for protection (Tr. 220). 

An examination of respondents' invoices also show that the 
nature of the coverage is not clearly stated thereon (e.g. CX 47-A, 
47-B). Mr. Brainerd in fact indicated that he was not aware of 
the nature of the insurance he was required to purchase (Brain
erd, Tr. 268). 

13. Through the use of the trade name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day 
Rent-A-Car," the corporate name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent
A-Car, Inc." the statements and representations referred to in 
Paragraph 10, and others of similar import and meaning, re
spondents have represented, and now are representing, directly 
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or by implication that respondents rent automobiles for the dollar 
amounts set forth conspicuously in their advertisements ( for 
example, Compacts for $5, Mustangs-Camaros for $7, Impalas
Fords for $8). 

Through the statements and representations set out in adver
tisements (see Paragraph 10), respondents have represented, and, 
now are representing, directly or by implication that respondents 
rent automobiles on a daily rate for the dollar amounts set forth 
conspicuously in their advertisements. A review of respondents' 
advertising (CX 25-A to 25-B, CX 26 A-P, CX 27 A-Z, CX 29 
A-T, ex 548 A~B, ex 30 A-X, ex 31 A-T, ex 23, ex 36, ex 
37, CX 132, CX 133 and 134, CX 141, CX 142 and 143, CX 144 
and 145) clearly gives a clear impression that respondents rent 
automobiles for specific dollar amounts per day. For a typical 
example, the Vegas Visitor newspaper for June 16, 1969 (CX 
26 A-P, at P) conspicuously represents, in addition to a $1 rate 
per day for a Volkswagen, Compacts for $4, Impalas-Fords for 
$7, Mustangs-Camaros for $7, Cadillacs and Wagons for $12. For 
another typical example, the Vegas Visitor newspaper for June 4, 
1971 (CX 29 A-T, at T), conspicuously represents, in addition to 
a $1 rate per day for a Volkswagen, Compacts for $5, Mustangs
Camaros for $7, Impalas-Fords for $8, Cadillacs and Wagons for 
$15. The impression is created in the minds of the consuming 
public by virtue of the relevant size of the lettering, the close 
proximity to the $1 symbol (which dominates the advertisement) 
and the contrasting coloring. 

14. In truth and in fact, respondents do not rent automobiles 
for the dollar amounts set forth conspicuously in their advertise
ments (for example, Compacts for $5, Mustangs-Camaros for $7, 
Impalas-Fords for $8) ; but in addition: 

(a) impose a cents-per-mile charge, 
(b) impose a minimum charge of 50 miles per day, at the 

cents-per-mile charge, whether or not the miles are actually driven, 
( c) impose a daily charge for insurance which covers collision 

damage to the automobile in excess of $50 unless the person rent
ing the automobile can demonstrate to the respondents' satisfac
tion, the existence of an insurance policy which will provide full 
collision coverage for any damage done to respondents' vehicle. 

While no testimony was adduced regarding this type of rental, 
it differs from the dollar-a-day rental only in that a more expen
sive automobile is involved, and the dollar amount factor in the 
rate is accordingly greater than one dollar. That a rate structure 
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involving the same elements as found in the dollar-a-day rate 
structure is utilized is apparent from an examination of invoices 
in the record involving these types of automobiles ( e.g., CX 46-A, 
CX 46-F, and CX 46-I). See also Finding 12 . 
. 15. Through the use of the trade name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day 

Rent-A-Car," the corporate name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent
A..:Car, Inc." the statements and representations referred to in 
Paragraph 10, and others of similar import and meaning, re
spondents have represented, and now are representing, directly 
or by implication that respondents rent automobiles for one dol
lar per day, plus an unspecified charge for each mile driven. See 
also Findings 12 and 20. 

16. In truth and in fact, respondents do not rent automobiles 
for one dollar per day, plus an unspecified charge for each mile 
driven, but in addition: 

(a) impose a minimum charge of 50 miles per day, at the 
cents-per-mile charge, whether or not the miles are actually driven, 

(b) impose a daily charge for insurance which covers collision 
damage to the automobile in excess of $50 unless the person rent
ing the automobile can demonstrate to the respondents' satisfac
tion, the existence of an insurance policy which will provide full 
collision coverage for any damage done to respondents' vehicle. 

See also Finding 12. 
17. Through the use of the trade name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day 

Rent-A-Car," the corporate name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent
A-Car, Inc." the statements and representations referred to in 
Paragraph 10, and others of similar import and meaning, respond
ents have represented, and now are representing, directly or by 
implication that respondents rent automobiles for the dollar 
amounts set forth conspicuously in their advertisements (for 
example, Compacts for $5, Mustangs-Camaros for $7, Impalas
Fords for $8), plus an unspecified charge for each mile driven. 
See also Finding 13. 

18. In truth and in fact, respondents do not rent automobiles 
for the dollar amounts set forth conspicuously in their adver
tisements (for example, Compact for $5, Mustangs-Camaros for 
$7, Impalas-Fords for $8), plus an unspecified charge for each 
mile driven, but in addition: 

(a) impose a minimum charge of 50 miles per day, at the cents
per-mile charge, whether or not the miles are actually driven, 

(b) impose a daily charge for insurance which covers collision 
damage to the automobile in excess of $50 unless the person 
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renting the automobile can demonstrate to the respondents' satis
faction, the existence of an insurance pOlicy which will provide 
full collision coverage for any damage done to the respondents' 
vehicle. 

See also Finding 14. 
19. Respondents in some advertisements include statements 

such as "Plus min. miles," or "Daily Flat Rates & Weekly Free 
Mile rates," also "50 Miles Daily Min." These statements, because 
of their context, size, and location are inconspicuous, vague, con
fusing, contradictory, and misleading. 

20. In the normal course and conduct of their aforesaid busi
ness, respondents' customers are required to sign a printed stand
ard form rental agreement which is ambiguous, unclear and con
fusing. Such standard form rental agreements purport to obligate 
the customer signing it to pay the respondents a specified amount 
of money in return for use of an automobile. However, the format 
and contents of the aforesaid rental agreements are such that 
neither the exact amount nor the precise method for calculating 
the exact amount which the customer will be required to pay 
thereunder is clearly and conspicuously set out. Said forms, there
fore, have the tendency and capacity to mislead and deceive 
customers signing the aforesaid rental agreements as to the 
amount they purportedly are thereby obligating themselves to 
pay respondents. 

Consumers may be confused prior to the contract as to the 
costs of the rental by respondents' advertising, and by oral mis
representations made prior to and/or at the time of contract
signing by respondents' employees. Once the contract has been 
signed, the consumer will act upon the beliefs he then has formed 
regarding the nature of the agreement, and particularly, the 
system of accruing costs which is the essence of the contract. 
Thus, any mistaken beliefs as to the nature of the costs he is 
accruing, which are not corrected at the time of execution of the 
contract can be extremely costly to the consumer. This is par
ticularly true because the consumer is usually transient ( Small 
Claims Court proceeding are wholly impractical), is often pressed 
for time at the time he returns the automobile because of an air
line reservation (see Provenzale, Tr. 220; Brainel'.d, Tr. 258), 
and the respondents often obtain a prepayment sufficient to cover 
the costs which will accrue under their interpretation of the con
tract (see Brainerd, Tr. 255-256). Thus, it is extremely impor
tant that contracts such as this, involving future costs which the 
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consumer may incur by his actions, disclose with absolute clarity 
the nature of the future costs, and how they are to be computed. 

Respondents partially fill out a rental contract at the time the 
rental is made. It is this partially-filled-out contract which is the 
renter's last opportunity to understand the nature of the future 
costs for the contract. A copy of such a partially-filled contract 
( termed by respondents "Standard Rental Agreement") executed 
by a consumer witness in this proceeding, was received in evidence 
as CX 546.13 The crucial cost disclosures and cost factors are 
contained in a box entitled "Rental Rate" in the middle right hand 
side of the page. 14 The disclosures made in such a "box" are: 
"Rental Rate:" "13¢-per mi. inc. gas;" "l.00-(24 hrs.) per day 
for;" "l.50 for $50 deductible" 

These disclosures can reasonably be interpreted to represent 
that the renter will be charged: 

13¢ per mile for each mile the rented automobile is driven, 
which charge will include payment by the respondent for gasoline 
used 

$1 fo:r each twenty-four hour period during which the auto
mobile is rented 

$1.50 for "$50 deductible" 
This was in fact the interpretations placed upon these dis

closures by the two consumer witnesses. Mr. Provenzale testified 
that he had his car for five days, drove 125 miles, and that he 
had expected to pay $22.75 (Tr. 216-217) : 

$1.00 per day X 5 
13¢ per mile X 125 
$1.50 insurance 

Total 

$ 5.00 
16.25 

1.50 

$22.75 

Mr. Brainerd testified that he had his car for four days, drove 
54 miles, and that he had expected to pay $13.94 (Tr. 254-256) : 

13 Much of the fine print in such contract is not legible, due to the poor quality of 
the coJ)y. 'I'he matt,,rH relevant hl'rP-thP Pntries in the "Rental Hate" box-are plainly 
legible, however. Clear copies of a complete contract ( "Standard Rental Agreement") 
are included in the record (e.g., CX 47-A to 47-B). 

14 Respondents' counsel makes much of the fact that the contract contains the phrase 
"GO MILES DAILY MINIMUM" in bold letters in the middle left hand side of the 
Jlllg-P. 'l'he best that can be Haid of the phrase is that it is in bold letters. It is contained 
in a "box" containing Hpaces for information wholly unrplated to the rental rate. It is 
wholly nnrplated to anything in the rental rate box. and more !)articularly. is wholly 
unr!'latell to the "¢ J>er mi. inc. gas" section of the "Hental Rate" box, which is the 
charge to which it rt--lates. In addition, t!IP phrase "~GO miles llaily minimum" is not 
Helf-explanatory. Neither consumer witness who testified was aware of the minimum 
mileage n•qnirernt--nt. in HJ)ite of executin~ a <:ontrnct. 
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$1.00 per day X 4 
11¢ per mile X 54 
$1.00 per day 

insurance )<' 4 

Total 

$ 4.00 
5.94 

4.00 

$13.94 ].-; 

83 F.T.C. 

These interpretations by the consumer witnesses were aided by 
misrepresentations by respondents' employees made at the time 
the contracts were prepared. Mr. Provenzale testified (Tr. 209-
210): 

Well, l went to this office. And I said, "I want to rent a car for a dollar 
a · day." So he said, "Okay." And I said, "What is the gimmick," and the 
man handed me-the man at the counter said, "There is no gimmick. It is a 
dollar a day plus 13 cents a mile." 

So I said, "All right." And I said I wanted to rent-it was a Volkswagen. 
I wanted a Volkswagen because it was an economy car. 

So at that time he gave me a contract and told me that it would be a dollar 
a day for the car plus-

HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: 13 cents a mile? 
THE WITNESS: 13 cents a mile plus a dollar fifty for insurance. 
HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE : All right. 
THE WITNESS: And I signed the contract and I took the car. 

Mr. Brainerd testified (Brainerd, Tr. 253-256) : 

And when I arrived in Las Vegas I went to the telephone and called up 
that number given there. And I asked them, "do you have a Volkswagen? I 
wish to rent it; I read your ad in one of the airline journals." 

And they said, "Yes, I do." And I said, "The ad says I can rent the car 
for a dollar a day plus mileage." And he said, "That is correct." 

I said, "Are there any other changes or conditions in connection with this 
rental?" And the voice at the other end of the telephone said, "No." 

I then went to the Brooks Rent-A-Car using the facility that they sug
gested that I use, namely one of the small auto buses that they transport 
passengers to and from the airport to their office in downtown Las Vegas .. 
And there were other people also in that bus. 

And when I got to the office I asked again-I told them that I called 
them up about the car and that I wished to rent a Volkswagen. And I said, 
"I understand it is a dollar a day." And they said, "Yes, it is a dollar a day." 

And I said, "Are there any other charges?" And they said, "You must also 
pay a dollar a day insurance." And I said-

HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: A dollar a day insurance? 
THE WITNESS: A dollar a day insurance. 
HEARING EXAMINER BUTTLE: A dollar a day insurance, not a dollar 

and a half? 

ir. Mr. Brainerd's precise testimony was "* * * I figured this came to approximately 
$14.00." (Brainerd, Tr. 256). 
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THE WITNESS: No, sir. It was a dollar a day for the car and a dollar 
a day for the insurance. 

There was no option as to whether I wished to take the insurance; I must 
take the insurance if I wanted to rent that car. 

Q. Yes. 
A. And then I asked "Are there any other charges or conditions in con

nection with the rental?" 
And the man behind the desk said, "No, there are not." 
He said that the mileage charge was 11 cents a mile. I then took the car 

and came back four days later, and I had driven 54 miles. 
( Mr. Brainerd subsequently testified regarding his return of the car (Tr. 

256): 
And I said, "There must be some mistake here because when I rented the 

car I asked if there were any additions and I was told that it was 1l cents 
a mile plus the $2.00 a day for the car and the insurance. He then told me
and it was the first time that I had been told that-there was a minimum 
mileage charge each day of 50 miles at 11 cents a mile whether you used the 
car at all. 

So that the bill, according to his calculation was $30.90. 

2L In truth and in fact, customers executing such contracts a:re 
:required to pay for 50 miles per day at the cents per mile rate, 
whether or not the miles are actually driven (See Finding 12, 
supr,a) , and respondents' printed form rental agreements there
fore fail to adequately disclose to customers at the time an auto
mobile is rented that there is a 50 mile daily minimum charge, 
at the cents-per-mile rate, whether or not these miles are actually 
driven (Paragraph 20). 

Further, the respondents' printed form rental agreements fail 
to adequately disclose the type and extent of the insurance pro
vided (See Finding 12, swpm). 

22. The aforesaid statements, representations, contracts, acts, 
and practices, were and are unfair, false, misleading, and 
deceptive. 

23. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business, and 
at all time mentioned herein, respondents Resort Car Rental 
System, Inc., Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent
A-Car, Inc., Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., Bell Rent-A-Car, Inc., 
and Irving Bell have been, and are now, in substantial competi
tion, in commerce, with corporations, firms and individuals in the 
rental of automobiles of the same general kind and in the same 
general manner as respondents. 

Respondents compete with other businesses engaged in the 
rental of automobiles to the public. Las Vegas, Nevada, Phoenix, 
Arizon~r Denver, Colorado, and the Virgin Islands attract thou-
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sands of tourists each year. Automobile rental firms vigorously 
vie with each other to supply these tourists with automobiles. This 
competition is reflected in advertisements in the same publications 
in which respondents advertise ( CX 26-E, National Car Rental ; 
CX26-G, CX 29-B, Thrifty Rent-A-Car; CX 26-I, Nevada Car 
Corp.; CX 26-K, Bonanza Rent-A-Car; CX 27-F, Wonderworld 
Rent-A-Car; CX 27-I, CX 29-E, Driveaway Rent-A-Car; CX 27 
at p. 40, Hertz). The testimony of consumer witnesses indicate 
that respondents are also, to some extent, in competition with 
taxicab companies for the transportation of personnel (Proven
zale, Tr. 214-215; Brainerd, Tr. 258). 

24. The use by respondents of the aforesaid unfair, false, mis
leading and deceptive statements, representations, contracts, acts 
and practices has the tendency and capacity to mislead and deceive 
members of the purchasing public into the renting of substantial 
numbers of respondents' automobiles. See Findings Nos. 1 through 
23, and CX 46-A to CX 51-Z-26, CX 547, for substantiation of 
this factual statement. 

25. Since respondent Bell Rent-A-Car, Inc., is not owned in 
whole or in part by any of the other respondents to this proceed
ing as of the date of said other respondents' answer in this pro
ceeding 16 no further proceedings in this matter are warranted 
with respect to Bell Rent-A-Cai·, Inc. 

CONCLUSIONS 

A. The Sustained Charges 

The crux of the charges sustained by the evidence is that re
spondents have failed in their representations, advertising and 
contracts to give equal emphasis to the cost disadvantages of their 
car rental offers comparable to the lower cost advantages. Above 
all the advertised day rental bargain is accentuated in the size of 
the print and advertising placement in contrast to the de-emphasis 
of required payment for minimum mileage and necessary insur
ance or other rental charges as elements of the total rental cost. 
There is an obligation upon respondents in renting or leasing 
cars to accentuate in the same degree every term of a car rental 
offer or contract, so that all conditions of rental may not be 
reasonably overlooked. 

1o See Finding 5, supra. 
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B. Rejected Evidence Adduced at Investigational Hearings 
Complaint counsel inadvertently presiding as a hearing exam

iner at an investigational hearing apparently because of incorrect 
reporting, sought the admission of the following investigational 
evidence as party admissions, although the respondent Bell was 
available to give testimony at the adjudicative proceedings if he 
had been subpoenaed. In this connection, complaint counsel as set 
forth in the proposed findings offered the following rejected in
vestigational testimony of Mr. Bell: 

Q. Let's look at Commission's Investigational Exhibit 22-0 which is the 
Lowery Airman. That ad states, for example, "Rent-A-Car in Denver from 
$1 Per 25 Hours plus Mileage for Volkswagens". Is there any minimum 
mileage requirement when a person is going to rent a Volkswagen for $1 
for 24 hours? 

A. Yes. 
Q. What is the m1mmum mileage requirement on it? 
A. I believe it's 50 miles. 
Q. Do all your companies have a 50-mile minimum requirement? 
A. On all companies that feature the $1 per 24-hour rental. 
Q. There is a minimum charge of 50 miles? 
A. A minimum guarantee. 
Q. Regardless of how many miles the person may actually use the car 

each day? 
A. Yes. 
Q. Can you tell me how that is computed, for example, with $1 for a 

Volkswagen in Denver, are they then charged 50 times the mileage amount 
in addition to $1? 

A. Yes. 
Q. Do you know what that mileage charge is, for example, in Denver, on 

a Volkswagen? 
A. It can vary between eight to thirteen cents depending upon whetner 

gas is included or not. 
Q. If gas is included, what would be the charge? 
A. I would say it would be between 10 and 13 cents. 
Q. So if it were 10 cents a mile, then a person would be charged for 50 

miles each day times 10 cents, or $5 plus the $1 for 24 hours. Are there any 
other charges? Is insurance included? 

A. There is a collision deductible waiver or a collision deductible fee that 
is charged. 

MR. GROSSMAN: This is optional, isn't it? 
THE WITNESS: I believe its optional. 
By Mr. Bernstein : 
Q. What is that cost for insurance coverage? 
A. It is not insurance; it is a collision damage waiver to our car, which 

would vary between $1 to $1.50 a day. 
Q. Let's look at Commission's Investigational Exhibit 22-B which is the 

current advertisement in "Vegas Visitor" for renting cars in Las Vegas. 
What is the charge per mile for a Volkswagen? 
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A. It would be $1 for 24 hours plus minimum miles. 
Q. How many are those minimum miles in Las Vegas? 
A. Fifty. 
Q. And how much per mile is the charge in Las Vegas? 
A. Currently it is 13 cents with gas. 
Q. You mean 13 cents with gas included? 
A. Yes. 

83 F.T.C. 

Q. So to make sure I understand this correctly, Mr. Bell, a person renting 
a Volkswagen in Las Vegas today on the basis of the-strike that-renting 
an automobile in Las Vegas would pay $1 for 24 hours plus 50 miles per day 
regardless of the number of miles driven times 1-3 cents per mile, or $6.50, 
so there would be a charge of $7 .50? 

MR. GROSSMAN: Assuming it's a daily rental. 
By Mr. Bernstein: 
Q. Assuming it is a daily rental? 
HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: Would you respond to the last ques-

tion? 
MR. GROSSMAN: Would you repeat the question, please. 
MR. BERNSTEIN: I will repeat it. 
By Mr. Bernstein: 
Q. In the advertisement in "Vegas Visitor," as I understand your discrip

tion of the charges, the person renting an automobile for one 24-hour day 
would be charged $1, and in addition, would be charged $6.50, which covers 
50 miles at 13 cents per mile regardless of the number of miles driven? 

A. Yes. 
Q. Is that correct? 
A. That is correct. 
MR. GROSSMAN: Assuming a daily rental? 
THE WITNESS: On a day-to-:day rental basis, yes. 
By Mr. Bernstein: 
Q. Am I correct then in stating the charge would then be $7.50 per day 

under this arrangement? 
A. On the rental basis, that is correct, yes. 

Q. Are there any additional charges to the $7.50? 
A. Yes. 
Q. What are those? 
A. We have an option, I think it is adding $1.50 a day, per day, on a 

day-to-day rental for a $50 collision deductible in the event the renter can
not present bona fide evidence of his insurance, that it would, in effect, give 
the same coverage to the rental of our vehicle. 

Q. The person pays $1.50 per day unless they can give you bona fide 
evidence of what? 

A. That they have insurance coverage available for any other cars that 
they rent on a physical damage $50 deductible basis. 

Q. In other words, they would have to show you evidence the car you were 
renting to them would be covered under their insurance for any damage in 
excess of $50? 

A. No; it would have a zero deductible on physical damage. 
Q. Zero deductible? 
A. Zero deductible. 
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Q. So the person would have to have in his possessin evidence he had an 
insurance policy which would completely cover any damage at all that 
may occur to the automobile you were renting to him, is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

HEARING EXAj.\UNER WRIGHT: In other words, if I have a personal 
insurance policy on my own car, $50 deductible collision policy, this would 
not qualify for the waiver as far as rental from you is concerned? I'd have 
to buy the insurance. 

THE WITNESS: No; this is not insurance we are selling. This is pay
ment to waive the deductible features above $50. We don't have no zero de
ductible. We allow the customer either to present evidence as Mr. Bernstein 
has indicated or pay the $1.50. It maximizes their responsibility to any dam
age to our car to $50. 

HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: Is that up to $50 or over $50. 
THE WITNESS: Up to $50. In other words, the first $50 is their respon

sibility. 
HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: Suppose my personal insurance is the 

common variety that says fifty or a hundred dollar deductible collision. I 
take it that would not be satisfactory? 

THE WITNESS: No, that would not. 
By Mr. Bernstein: 

Q. The person would then in order to rent a car from you would have to 
pay an additional amount of $1.50 per day? 

A. Yes. 

HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: Suppose I had this coverage, what 
would be the minimum evidence you would require in order to rent your 
car without my payment of insurance? 

THE WITNESS: Prima facie evidence, a policy, as you would present a 
driver's license, or if you would make representation you have Diner's or 
American Express, prim a f acie evidence, the fact that it exi'sts. 

HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: But the fact the insurance is con
cerned-

THE WITNESS (interposing): This is not insurance. 
HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: But I cannot present an American 

Express card and say I have insurance in the case of this as waiver. I would 
virtually have to have my policy? 

THE WITNESS: I merely use that as an example. In other words, if 
you said you have an American Express card, you would show it. If you 
said you had a policy that had these provisions, we would ask for that to be 
presented. 

HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: So if I came to Las Vegas without 
my auto policy in my pocket, I would probably have to pay the waiver? 

Mr. GROSSMAN: Or. identification from your insurance company which 
are issued with all policies so far as I know. 

HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: A credit card or some sort of a card? 
MR. BERNSTEIN: I think Mr. Grossman is referring to an identification 

card. 
MR. GROSSMAN: That would verify you with a local represenhtive. 
HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: Would something like that be accept

able? 
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THE WITNESS: If it's subject to easy verification. 
HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: What verification in addition to the 

card would be required? 
THE WITNESS: If they say they are with Allstate and give the number, 

we could call the local insurance office and get the limits of their policy by 
the time the car comes back and then work it out. 

HEARING EXAMINER WRIGHT: You would accept that and let them 
take the car? 

THE WITNESS: Tentatively. yes. 
By Mr. Bernstein: 
Q. That is if they had 100 per cent collision coverage·? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Otherwise, they'd have to pay the $1.50. 
A. In the event there is collision damage, yes. 

Q. If a person pays the $1.50 and they do $30 damage to your automobile, 
are they liable for the $30? 

A. Yes. 

Q. They al'e liable for the $00 '! 
~.\. They are liable for the first $50 in all case::;, yes. Our program is 

different than, shall we say Hertz, A vis, or National, who charge $2.50 a 
day for what they call a complete collision damage waiver; that is, with no 
responsibility. We have amended ours to hold to a $50 responsibility in aH 
cases. 

Q. Let me make sure l understand this. If the person is able to show you 
a policy or show you an insurance identification card where you can, by the 
time they return the car, verify what the coverage is, and in either one of 
those two instances the coverage of the policy would have to be for 100 
per cent collision coverage, if they can satisfy you they are covered 100 per 
cent, they would not have to pay the $1.50 per day? 

A. Yes. 

Q. But if they did $30 damage to your vehicle, they would have to pay $:iO. 
A. Yes. 

Q. If they are unable to produce evidence satisfactory to you, they have 
100 percent collision coverage on the automobile they are renting from you, 
they must pay $1.50 per day before they rent the vehicle? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And once they obligate themselves to pay that $1.50 per day, they are 
covered for any damage in excess of $50 but have to pay for any damage up 
to $50? 

A. Yes. 
MR. GROSSMAN: To the vehicle. 
By Mr. Bernstein : 

Q. To the vehicle? 
A. Right. 

Q. Then as I understand what you are saying, the person renting a Volks
wagen in Las Vegas today would, unless they could show they have 100 per 
cent collision coverage, would be obligated to pay $9 a day for each 24-hour 
period for the Volkswagen? 

A. Yes; that would include all mileage, gas, and coverage. 
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Q. Is the insurance system you have just described basically the same, or 
is it exactly the same-strike the word basically-for all your companies? 

MR. GROSSMAN: I believe Mr. Bell stated it was not an insurance pro-
gram. 

MR. BERNSTEIN: l'm sorry. 
By Mr. Bernstein: 
Q. Is the program you just described the same for all your companies? 
A. Collision damage waiver? 
Q. Yes. 
A. I would say yes. 

A sampling of respondents' rental agreements herein before 
referred to were introduced into evidence (CX 46-A-CX 51-Z-
26). A tabulation 17 of these rental agreements vividly illustrates 
that consumers purchased collision damage insurance in a very 
high percentage of cases. This is particularly true with respect to 
respondent Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc. These statistics further sup
port other evidence that the purchase of collision insurance from 
respondents is virtually mandatory as least for protective 
purposes. 

The cases cited by complaint counsel in support of the admis
sibility of such evidence taken at the investigational hearing are 
clearly and obviously not in point for the following reasons: 

1. The statements of the witness Bell were not voluntary but 
under interrogation and opportunity to clarify his statements 
appear to be questionable. 

2. The cited testimony sought to be offered as admissions may 
not be within the context of Bell's other testimony. 

3. The reporter was not called for purposes of cross-examina
tion at the adjudicative hearing as to the accuracy of his tran
script despite his certification to this effect on the transcript. 

4. There are no prescribed procedures in investigational hear
ings for correcting the record in the event of inaccuracies. 

5. It is apparent that in any event Mr. Bell's testimony would 
be cumulative and . at best would corroborate other evidence ad
duced through third-party witnesses and documents. Under these 
circumstances, Mr. Bell's testimony would be immaterial even as
suming that it could be considered technically admissible. 

6. Furthermore, the Bell investigational evidence cited as of
fered is obscure in identifying the publications in which the de
ceptive advertising is charged to have been placed at least without 
the receipt of a substantial part of the total investigational tran
script. Under these circumstances, inv~.stigational hearings 

17 'l'he complaint counsel methodology used in compiling this tabulation is hereinafter 
discussed. 
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would serve as a substitute for adjudicative hearings required by 
the Administrative Procedure Act. 

The law is indeed considerably unsettled even with regard to 
admitting judicial admissions adduced at a prior trial involving 
the same issues and the ·authorities express no precise opinion as 
to admissions made during investigational hearings. You can 
cross-examine a reporter or anyone hearing admissions under the 
extra-judicial theory of receiving such evidence but one cannot 
cross-examine a certified transcript with regard to accuracy. 
Where a party or his counsel concedes accuracy by signature or 
otherwise, this is a different matter in considering the reliability 
of an extra-judicial admission. 

Additionally, in the within case the attorney who heard the 
admissions, if they were admissions, during the course of the 
investigational hearing presided at that hearing and in part in
terrogated Mr. Bell. He was also the prosecutor in this adjudica
tive proceeding. Under these circumstances there is a clear con
flict of interest if the investigational hearing is to receive a trust
worthy status as evidence in a technical sense. The foregoing is 
not intended in any way to be critical of the attorneys who pros
ecuted the within case since the observation of the administrative 
law judge is that they are persons of considerable integrity as 
well as ability. The evidence, however, does not justify the receipt 
of the claimed admissions as reliable evidence to be considered in 
this adjudicative proceeding in the absence of the applicability 
of the Wigmore rule of necessity and trustworthiness. 

RENTAL AGREEMENT TABULATION METHODOLOGY 

APPLIED BY COMPLAINT COUNSEL 

I. Introduction: 

This tabulation is based upon certain of respondents' rental 
agreements received in evidence and is divided into six group
ings. These groupings represent, respectively: certain Brooks 
Rent-A-Car, Inc., Las Vegas, Nevada, rental agreements exe
cuted in January, 1970 (CX 46-A-CX 46-Z-269); certain Brooks 
Rent-A-Car, Inc., Las Vegas, Nevada, rental agreements executed 
in May and June, 1970 (CX 47-A-CX 47-Z-273) ; certain Brooks 
Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., Phoenix, Arizona, rental agree
ments executed in J§tnuary, 1970 (CX 48-A-CX 48-Z-26); cer
tain Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., Phoenix, Arizona, 
rental agreements executed in June 1970 ( CX 49-A-CX 49-Z-25) ; 
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and certain Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., Denver, Colorado, rental 
agreements executed in June, 1970 (CX 51-A-CX 51-Z-26). 

II. Tabulation of Extent of Use by Respondents of "50 MILE 
MINIMUM PER DAY" Rate Structure; Extent of Overcharge to 

Consumers who paid pursuant to "50 MILE MINIMUM 
PER DAY" 

RATE STRUCTURE DEFINITIONS: (to be used in conjunc
tion with tabulation, Proposed Finding Number 19). 

The following definitions apply to this tabulation ( footnotes 
appear in Section IV-Sources) : 

"Tot,al number ,of rental ,agree'ments" (line 1): The total 
number of rental agreements within the Group, not including 
any voided rental agreements. 
"Number of consumers charged 50 mile minimum per day" 
(line 2-Numb.er): The total number of rental agreements 
within the Group which show a minimum charge of fifty 
miles per day, at the cents-per-mile charge.1 

"Proportion of rentals made on 50 mile minimum per day 
basis" (line 2-Percentage): The proportion which compares 
the number of consumers charged a 50 mile minimum per day 
with the total number of rental agreements tabulated within 
the Group.2 

"Number of consumers charged 50 mile minimum per day 
who didn't drive 50 miles per dny" (line 3-Number): The 
total number of rental agreements within the Sub-Group 
described in line 2-Number, which show that the respective 
consumers who were parties to such agreements did not ac
tually drive the rented automobiles at least an average of 50 
miles per day for each day said consumers incurred a charge 
for 50 miles at the cents-per-mile charge.a 
"Proportion of consumers charged 50 mile minimum per day 
who did not driv.e 50 miles per d,ay" (line 3-Percenf;age): 
The percentage which indicates the number of rental agree
ments within the Sub-Group described on line 2-Number, 
which indicate that the consumer was charged a 50-mile mini
mum per day, but did not actually drive at least an 'average 
of 50 miles per day. 4 

"Number of consumers charged 50 mile minimum p,er day, 
who did not drive 25 miles per day" (line 4-Number): The 
total number of rental agreements within the Sub-Group 
described in line 2-Number, which show that the respective 
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consumers who were parties to such agreements did not ac
tually drive the rented automobiles at least an average of 25 
miles per day for each day said consumers incurred a charge 
for 50 miles at the cents-per-mile charge.5 

"Proportion of c-onsumers charged 50 mile minimum p,er day 
who did not drive 25 miles per day" (line 4-Percentage): 
The percentage which indicates the number of rental agree
ments within the Sub-Group described in line 2-Number, 
which indicate that the consumer was charged a 50 mile 
minimum per day, but did not actually drive at least an 
average of 25 miles per day. 6 

"Number of consumers charged 50 mile minimum per day 
who did not drive 15 miles p,er day'' (line 5-Number): The 
total number of rental agreements within the Sub-Group 
described in line 2-Number, which show that the respective 
consumers who were parties to such agreements did not 
actually drive the rented automobile at least an average of 
15 miles per day for day each said consumers incurred a 
charge for 50 miles at the cents-per-mile charge. 7 

"Proportion -of consumers charged 50 mile mitnimum per day 
who did not -drive 15 miles per day" (line 5-Perc.entage): The 
percentage which indicates the number of rental agreements 
within the Sub-Group described in line 2-Number, which 
indicate that the consumer was charged a 50 mile minimum 
per day, but did not actually drive at least an average of 15 
miles per day. 8 

"Number -of consumers charg.ed 50 mile minimum per day, 
who did not ,drive 1 0 miles per day" (line 6-Num.ber): The 
total number of rental agreements within the Sub-Group 
described in line 2-Number, which show that the respective 
consumers who were parties to such agreements did not ac
tually drive the rented automobile at least an average of 10 
miles per day for each day said consumers incurred a charge 
for 50 miles at the cents-per-mile charge.9 

"Proportion of consumers charg.ed 50 mile minimum per day, 
who did not ,drive 10 miles per .day (line 6-Perc.entage): The 
percentage which indicates the number of rental agreements 
within the Sub-Group described in line 2-Number, which indi
cate that the consumer was charged a 50 mile minimum per 
day, but did not actually drive at least an average of 10 miles 
per day.10 
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III. Tabulation of Extent of Purchase by Consumers of 
Collison Damage Insurance 

DEFINITIONS: ( To be used in conjunction with tabulation, 
Proposed Finding Number 22) 

The following definitions apply to this tabulation (footnotes 
appear in Section IV-Sources) : 

"Total number of rental agreements'' (line I-Number): The 
total number of rental agreements within the Group, not 
including any voided rental agreements. 
"Number of consumers who purchased collis'ion damage in.
sumnce (line 2-Nurnber): The number which indicates the 
rental agreements within the Group which show that the 
consumer was charged a daily charge for collision damage 
insurance (referred to variously on said rental agreements 
as "$1-$50 DEDUCTIBLE," "50 DEDUCT," "INSUR
ANCE," etc.), said daily charge shown as $1.50 in 1970.11 

"Proportion of consumers who pur.chase.d collision dJamage 
insurance" (line 2-Perc.entage): The percentage which indi
cates the rental agreements within the respective Groups 
which show that the consumer was charged a daily charge 
for collision damage insurance.12 

IV. SOURCES (Numbers refer to footnote numbers, supra) : 
1 Rental Agreements: Total number of all agreements with an entry in 

space to left of space entitled.-"<'· PER MILE INC. GAS" within section en
titled "RENTAL RATE," plus an entry in space to right of space entitled 
"MILES" within the section entitled "CHARGES" where the latter entry is: 
the total of 50 times the indicated cents-per-mile charge divided by the 
number of days used as indicated in the space to the right of the space 
entitled "DAYS" within the section entitled "RENTAL RATE." 
Ta.bulation: Total number of rental agreements reflecting daily rate with 
50 miles daily minimum. 

2 Line 2 divided by line 1. 
:, Rental Agreements: Miles-driven fiigures obtained from section in upper 

right hand portion of rental agreements entitled "MILEAGE." Number of 
days rented from space between spaces entitled "RENT AL RA TE." Total 
miles-driven was divided by number of days rented to arrive at the figure 
for average number of miles per day the automobile was driven. Tabulations: 
Computed from "total miles driven" and "number of days driven." "Total 
miles driven" was divided by "Number of days driven" to arrive at figure 
for average number of miles per day automobile was driven. 

◄ Line 3-Number divided by line 2. 
c; See Note 3, supra. 
0 Line 4-Number divided by line 2. 
7 See Note 3, supra. 
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8 Line 5-Number divided by line 2. 
0 See Note 3, supra. 
10 Line 6-Number divided by line 2. 

83 F.T.C. 

11 Rental Agreements: All rental agreements with an entry in the space 
to the far right of the space entitled "$5-0 DEDUCTIBLE" (ETC.), the space 
entitled "$50 DEDUCTIBLE" (ETC.), being within the section headed 
"RENTAL RA TE," and the space to the far right of said space being 
within the section headed "CHARGES." Tabulations: Total of number of 
such entries. 

12 Line 2-Number divided by line 1. 
The administrative law judge concludes that the foregoing 

methodology applied by complaint counsel is a reasonable one for 
the purposes indicated in the Findings. 

SUMMARY OF CONCLUSIONS 

1. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the sub
ject matter of this proceeding and of respondents Resort Car 
Rental System, Inc., Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Brooks Dollar-A
Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., and Irving 
Bell. 

2. Said respondents have been at all times relevant hereto en
gaged in interstate commerce within the intent and meaning of 
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act. 

3. The use by said respondents of the aforesaid unfair, false, 
misleading and decepitve statements, representations, contracts, 
acts and practices has had, and now has, the capacity and ten
dency to mislead consumers into the erroneous and mistaken be
lief that said statements and representations were and are true 
and into the rental of substantial quantities of said respondents' 
automobiles by reason of said erroneous and mistaken beliefs, 
and of said unfair, false, misleading and deceptive contracts, acts 
and practices. 

4. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondents, as herein 
found, were, and are, all to the prejudice and injury of the public, 
and of said respondents' competitors and constituted, and now 
constitute, unfair methods of competition in commerce and un
fair and deceptive acts and practices in commerce in violation of 
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act. 

BASIS FOR THE ORDER 

This order varies from the Notice Order in that Bell Rent-A
Car, Inc. has been eliminated from the order (see Finding 25) 
and in that disclosure requirements contained in the order are 
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made more explicit. In addition to these changes, there are minor 
changes in language to clarify and facilitate understanding. 

The Federal Trade Commission has broad authority to create 
cease and desist orders as needed to cure wrongs it seeks to 
prevent. These orders need not be limited to the specific unlawful 
practices in which the respondent was found to engage. F.T.C. v. 
National Lead Co., 352 U.S. 419, 427 (1957); S.S.S. Co., Inc. v. 
F.T.C., 416 F.2d 226 (6th Cir. 1969). An affirmative requirement 
to disclose in respondents' advertising and rental agreements all 
charges and conditions imposed for rental of automobiles is not 
only warranted but clearly within the Commission's discretion. 
See e.g., Allstate Industries of N.C., Inc. v. F.T.C., 423 F.2d 423 
(4th Cir. 1970); J. B. Williams Co. v. F.T.C., 381 F.2d 884 (6th 
Cir. 1967) ; Keele Hair & Scialp Spec1Jalists, Inc. v. F.T.C., 275 
F.2d 18 (5th Cir. 1960). 

The Commission also has the power to order that a trade name 
be excised. This power has been exercised in past decisions. See 
e.g., Bakers Frianchise Corp. v. F.T.C., 302 F.2d 258 (3rd Cir. 
1962) (excision of word "diet") ; Cai·ter Products, In,c. v. F.T.C., 
268 F.2d 461 (9th Cir. 1969) (excision of word "liver" from 
trade name "Carters Little Liver Pills") ; El Mor.a Cigar Co. v. 
F.T.C., 107 F.2d 429 ( 4th Cir. 1939) ( excision of word "Havana" 
from trade name "Havana Counts") ; Maslwnd Durialeather Co. 
v. F.T.C., 34 F.2d 733 (3d Cir. 1929) (excision of "Duraleather" 
from trade name); Virginia Dcir.e Stor.es Corp., 64 FTC 1220 
(1964) ( excision of word "Atlantic Mills" or "Mills" from trade 
name). Admittedly, a trade name is a valuable business asset 
and excision should only be ordered in cases, such as the present 
case, where there is no less drastic means to eliminate the decep
tion. Jrwob Siegel Co. v. F.T.C., 327 U.S. 608 (1946). Qualifying 
language has been recognized, in some instances, as a means to 
eliminate deception short of excision. However, qualifying lan
guage which amounts to a contradiction in terms would com
pletely confuse the consuming public and will not be considered 
as an alternative to excision in such case. In Bakers Fmnc·his,e 
Corp. v. F.T.C., mpra, the court observed that the continued use 
of the trade name "Lite Diet" with the qualifying phrase "not a 
low calorie bread" or "not low in calories" would be a contradic
tion in terms and therefore not an acceptable alternative to 
excision. The continued use of the trade name "Dollar-A-Day" 
with such qualifying language as "no vehicle may be rented for 
a dollar a day" would be just as contradictory and confusing to 
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the consumer public as the qualifying language rejected in Bake-rs 
Franchise, swpra. 

The trade name "Dollar-A-Day" has the tendency and capacity 
to deceive or mislead the consuming public as to the price at 
which a vehicle can be rented from respondents. Therefore, a 
provision ordering excision of the trade name "Dollar-A-Day" 
is required in this situation. Accordingly, 

ORDER 

It is ,ordered, That the respondents Resort Car Rental System, 
Inc., Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, 
Inc. and Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., corporations, trading under 
the above trade or corporate names or under any other trade or 
corporate name or names, their respective successors and assigns, 
and their respective officers, and Irving Bell, individually and as 
an officer of said corporations (hereinafter referred to as "re
spondents") and respondents' agents, representatives and em
ployees, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division 
or other device, in connection with the advertising, renting, or 
offering for rent of motor vehicles, in commerce, as "commerce" 
is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith 
cease and desist from : 

1. Representing, directly. or by implication, any price, fee, 
or amount which is imposed for rental of a motor vehicle 
unless such price, fee, or amount includes all charges or 
conditions which are imposed for or on rental of such vehicle 
at such price, fee, or amount. 

The term "charges or conditions" means any charge or 
condition necessary to the rental of a motor vehicle, which 
is not strictly at the option of the person renting the vehicle. 
Examples of such charges and conditions are: 

a. A daily or other periodic charge ; 
b. A cents per mile charge ; 
c. A minimum charge at the cents-per-mile charge, 

whether or not the miles are actually driven; 
d. A charge for gasoline, oil, and repairs if such are 

not included in (a) or (b) above; 
e. Any charge for insurance. 

Provided, however, That 
(i) (a) and (b) above may be stated separately from 

each other if there is no other charge or condition, and 
if (a) and (b) are in equally large type and in close 
proximity to each other; 
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(ii) any charge made for collision insurance must be 
included in said representation if such insurance charge 
is not strictly at the option of the person renting the 
vehicle; a charge for collision insurance shall not be 
deemed to be "strictly at the option of the person rent
ing the vehicle" if any evidence of other insurance must 
be provided to respondents in order not to purchase said 
collision insurance; 

(iii) the coverage of collision insurance, whether op
tional, mandatory, or included in the rental agreement 
price, shall be clearly described in the rental agreement .. 

2. Misrepresenting, in any manner, any method of compu
tation of a charge, charge, or condition imposed for rental of 
a motor vehicle. 

3. Using any title, corporate name, trade name, or other 
designation (including but not limited to "Dollar-A-Day") 
which represents, directly or by implication, any price, fee, 
or amount which is imposed for rental of a motor vehicle, 
unless such representation includes all charges or conditions 
which are imposed for rental of such vehicle, in conformity 
with the requirements of Paragraph One of this order. 

4. Executing or causing to be executed, any written agree
ment purporting to obligate a consumer to pay at that or 
any future time any consideration for the rental of a motor 
vehicle, where the language and format of the written agree
ment does not conform with the requirements of Paragraphs 
One through Three of this order. If any minimum mileage 
charge is imposed at the cents-per-mile charge pursuant to 
said agreement, said agreement shall contain the following 
statement in capital letters in at least eight point bold type, 
next to and clearly associated with that place on said agree
ment which provides for entry of the cents per mile rate: 
"NOTICE: A MINIMUM CHARGE OF (e.g., 50) MILES 
PER (e.g., DAY), AT THE CENTS-PER-MILE ·CHARGE 
WILL BE IMPOSED, WHETHER OR NOT THE MILES 
ARE ACTUALLY DRIVEN." 

It is further -ordered, That respondents notify the Commission 
at least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in the 
corporate respondents, such as dissolution, assignment or sale 
1·esulting in the emergence of a successor corporation, the creation 
or dissolution of subsidiaries or any other change in the corpora- _ 
tion which may affect compliance obligations arising out of the -
order. 
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It -is f,ur·ther ordere.d, That respondents shall forthwith distrib
ute a copy of this order to each of their respective operating sub
sidiaries, divisions, and offices, and to each employee, present or 
future. 

It is further ordere,d, That the individual respondent named 
herein promptly notify the Commission of the discontinuance of 
any of his present businesses or employment and of his affiliation 
with a new business or employment. Such notice shall include said 
respondents' current business address and a statement as to the 
nature of the business or employment in which he is engaged as 
well as a description of his duties and responsibilities. 

It is further ,order.e,d, That the complaint is dismissed as to the 
respondent Bell Rent-A-Car, Inc., pursuant to complaint counsel's 
Proposed Finding 25 which has been adopted herein. 

OPINION OF THE COMMISSION 

JULY 31, 1973 

BY J·oNES, Comniissioner: 
In August of 1971, the Commission filed a complaint against 

Resort Car Rental System, Inc., a corporation, Brooks Rent-A-Car, 
Inc., a corporation, Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., a 
corporation, Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., a corporation, Bell Rent
A-Car, Inc., a corporation, and Irving Bell, individually and as an 
officer of said corporations, charging violation of Section 5 of the 
Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45 (1964), in the 
renting and leasing of automobiles and the advertising thereof, 
including the terms under which such automobiles could be rented 
or leased.1 

The complaint charged that respondents made false and decep
tive statements in representations concerning the off er and price 
of renting and leasing automobiles. This included misrepresenta
tions that the price charged for automobile rental was $1 per day 
or some other dollar amount set forth in advertisements. 

Respondents denied the essential allegations in the complaint 
and the matter proceeded to hearing on May 15, 1972. The case 

1 The following abbreviations will be used for citations: Transcript of proceedings, 
'"l'r."; complaint couru;el's exhibits, "CX"; and pxamilwr's initial dech;io11. "Ill." Briefs 
of either the respondent (Res.) or complaint counsel (C.C.) will be cited as follows: 
Brief on appeal, "App. Br."; and answering brief, "Ans. Br." 
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was reopened by order on July 17, 1972, at the request of counsel 
for the purpose of receiving into the record further testimony of 
Mr. Leonard Provenzale. 

DECISION OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE 

The administrative law judge 2 concluded that the allegations 
had been proved with respect to corporate respondents Resort 
Car Rental System, Inc., Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Brooks Dollar
A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., and Irving 
Bell, in his individual capacity. The administrative law judge 
determined, however, that with respect to corporate respondent 
Bell Rent-A-Car, Inc., no proceedings in this matter are war
ranted because as of the date of respondents' answers in this 
proceeding, Bell Rent-A-Car was no longer owned in whole or in 
part, by any of the above respondents and/or respondent Irving 
Bell. (Res. Ans·., Paragraph 1) 

The administrative law judge found that respondents dissemi-
nate advertisements in brochures, newspapers and magazines in 
and among the several states which contain various statements 
and. representations concerning the amounts charged for auto
mobile rental. (Finding 10) Respondents have used the trade 
name, "Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car" and the corporate 
name, "Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc." in these adver
tisements. (Finding 10) Respondents' advertisements convey the 
impression that respondents rent cars for $1 per day or some 
other dollar amount set forth conspicuously in the advertisements 
according to the administrative law judge. (Finding 11) 

The administrative law judge concluded that in truth and in 
fact respondents do not rent automobiles for $1 per day or some 
dollar amount set forth in advertisements, but in addition impose 
a cents per mile charge, a minimum charge of 50 miles per day 
at the cents per mile charge whether or not the miles were actually 
driven, and a daily charge for insurance. (Finding 12) 

The administrative law judge based these findings as to addi
tional charges on the following: respondents' admission that a 
cents per mile charge was imposed in connection with car rental 
( Res. Ans. Para. 6 (1) (a) ) (ID. 17 [p. 255 herein] ) ; the testi
mony of two consumer witnesses indicating they were charged 

2 'l'hroughout the Opinion, whenever the term administrative law judge is usrd it 
refers to that officer who was designated "Hearing Examiner" during the adjudicative 
proceedings. 



282 FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION DECISIONS 

Opinion 83 F.T.C. 

these extra amounts (ID. 24 [p. 259 herein]) ; and the fact 
that an examination of copies of rental agreements introduced· 
into the records of this proceeding disclosed that a cents per mile 
charge was imposed on all rentals involving the use of a 50 mile 
per day minimum rate structure and that an insurance charge 
was also imposed. (ID. 18-24 [pp. 255-59 herein]) The admin
istrative law judge also relied on tabulations made by complaint 
counsel of rates charged by respondents based on a sampling of 
the aforementioned lease agreements. These tabulations demon
strated that the vast majority of rentals included charges for "50 
miles minimum per day" and charges for insurance.3 

Respondents' advertisements sometimes contain statements such 
as "plus minimum miles" or "daily flat rate & weekly free mile 
rate." The administrative law judge found that these statements 
because of their content, size and location are inconspicuous, 
vague, confusing, contradictory and misleading. (Finding 19) 

The administrative law judge also found that respondents' 
customers are required to sign a printed standard form rental 
agreement which is ambiguous, unclear and confusing. The for
mat and contents of this rental agreement are such that neither 
the exact amount nor the price method for calculating the exact 
amount which the customer will be required to pay is clearly and 
conspicuously set out. The administrative law judge concluded 
that respondents' printed form rental agreement failed to ade
quately disclose to customers at the time an automobile is rented 
that there is a 50 mile daily minimum charge at the cents per 
mile rate whether these miles are actually driven. In addition, 
the administrative law judge found that respondents' printed 
form rental agreements failed to disclose the type and extent of 
insurance provided. (Finding 20) The administrative law judge 
based this finding on copies of rental agreements executed by re-

3 These tabulations so compiled by complaint counsel and relied on by the law judge 
established that respondents do not rent cars for one dollar per day. Of the 278 rental 
agreements from Brook~ Rent-A-Car, Las Vegas, Nevada, in January 1970, 95 percent 
of the consumers were cliarged for a "50 miles minimum per day" and 97.5 Ilercent 
were charged for collision damage insurance (CX 47-a, 47-z, 273) ; of 28G rental 
agreements from Brooks Hent-A-Car, Inc., Las Vegas, Nevada, in May-June 1970, 
92.3 percent were charged the "50 miles minimum per (lay" and 95.1 percent were 
charged for co1lision damage insurance (CX 48-a, 48-z, 20) ; of the 44 rental agree
ments of Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., Phoenix, Arizona, in January 1970, 
70.5 percent: were charge<l the atl<litional "GO miles mi.nimnm !.Wr <lay" aml lit...! percPnt 
were charg-Nl for colliHion <lanwg-P i.11Ht1raneP (CX 4!1-a, 4!l-z. 2:i) ; of the -rn rP!ltal agreP
ments of Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., Denver, Colorado, in .Tune 1970, 85.4 percent 
of the consumers were charged "50 miles minimum per <la.r" and 52.1 percent were 
charged for collision di1mage insurance. (CX 51-a, 51-z, 20) 
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spondents, 4 a partially filled out contract ( termed by respondents 
"standard rental agreement") executed by a consumer witness in 
this proceeding and received into evidence.5 

The administrative law judge did not base his findings on testi
mony adduced at investigational hearings. He specifiically ex
cluded this testimony proffered by complaint counsel. The testi
mony went to the issue of whether purchase of collision damage 
insurance was mandatory. The administrative law judge's find
ings that consumers purchased collision insurance in a very high 
percentage of cases and that the purchase of collision insurance 
from respondents is virtually mandatory, were not based on this 
rejected testimony but instead on tabulations made by complaint 
counsel of a sampling of respondents' rental agreements. 

The administrative law judge concluded that the statements, 
representations, contracts, acts and practices of respondents were 
and are unfair, false, misleading and deceptive and that their use 
has the tendency and capacity to mislead and deceive members of 
the purchasing public into the renting of substantial numbers of 
respondents' automobiles. (ID. 48-49 [p. 276 herein]) 

APPEAL 

In their appeal, respondents 6 do not challenge the findings and 
conclusions of the administrative law judge with respect to the 
factual basis underlying the allegations of violation. Rather, 
respondents rest their appeal principally on the contention that 
testimony given at the investigative hearing and the documents 
( copies of rental agreements) attained from respondents and 
proffered at the trial by complaint counsel should not have been 
received into evidence during the adjudicative hearing. Respond
ents also assert that complaint counsel Gerald Wright could not 
establish the authenticity of documents by testifying regarding 
his previous procurement of them. As to the statistical surveys 
based on these rental agreements, respondents contend that these 
were also improperly admitted into evidence. Respondents also 
challenge the admission of the testimony of two consumer wit-

4 ex 26-a-51-z-26. 
5 ex 546. 
6 Throughout this opinion whenever the term "respondents" is used it refers to the 

corporate respondents Resort Car Rental System, Inc., Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Brooks 
Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., and Irving Bell, indi
vidually and as an officer of said coropra tions. 
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nesses, issuance of a press release by the Commission and the 
"broadness" of the initial decision and order. 

Complaint counsel in this proceeding has appealed the admin
istrative law judge's rejection of certain evidence offered by com
plaint counsel which consisted of testimony received at an investi
gational hearing conducted precedent to the adjudicative hearing 
in this matter. Complaint counsel does not appeal any of the 
administrative law judge's findings or conclusions nor the order 
he issued. 

We will deal with each of these contentions seri,atim. 

I 

Admissibility in an Adjudicative Hearing of 
Testimony Adduced During Investigational Hearings 

Complaint counsel made a request at the hearing in this mat
ter to introduce into evidence excerpts of testimony attained at 
an investigational hearing, for the truth of the matters contained 
therein.7 The administrative law judge rejected this evidence and 
subsequently denied complaint counsel's motion for reconsidera
tion of its admission. 8 

The testimony which complaint counsel sought to introduce into 
evidence. contained statements by respondent, Irving Bell, re
garding the rate charged for car rental by respondents and the 
nature of insurance coverage extended by respondents. Testimony 
regarding these issues could not be elicited from Irving Bell at 
the adjudicative hearing due to the fact that complaint counsel 
failed to perfect service upon Mr. Bell.9 

Respondents argue that any and all testimony received through 
or incidental to the investigational hearing conducted by the Fed
eral Trade Commission in this matter should not have been ad
mitted into evidence. (Res. App. Br. 6-15) Respondents are in 
error with respect to the admission of testimony adduced at the 
investigational hearing. No testimony obtained at the investi-

7 This evidence consisted of an excerpt taken from the testimony of Irving Bell at an 
investigational hearing held in November of 1970. It was marked at trial as Commis
:-iion':-i Exhibit for Identification ll5. Altrn sec ID :-12-42 [lll). 26fi-71 herein]. 

8 See order of the administrative law judge of July 26, 1972. 
u Complaint counsel did not: mail the subpoena directed to Irving Bell until approx

imately :! weeks before the hearing date (l\la.r 15, l!l72). (Ans. Br. 8) After said 
subopena was mailed, complaint counsel realized that there were omissions in it. The 
new subpoena ad testijicandum directed to Irving Bell was not attempted to be served 
until 3 working days prior to the adjudicative hearing. 
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gational hearing was admitted into evidence at the adjudicative 
hearing for the truth of its contents.10 

The basis for complaint counsel's appeal here is that the above
mentioned testimony should have been admitted into evidence 
at the adjudicative hearing as a party admission, an exception to 
the hearsay rule. This aforementioned testimony was offered by 
complaint counsel to further support the conclusion reached by 
the administrative law judge in Finding 12 that respondent im
posed additional rental charges not disclosed in advertisements. 
As such, the ruling of the administrative law judge rejecting this 
evidence does not materially affect the substantive is'sue of 
whether these additional charges were imposed ; he reached the 
same conclusion contended for by complaint counsel. (Finding 
12) This finding in the initial decision that such additional 
charges were imposed. is based entirely on copies of rental agree
ments the testimony o& two consumer witnesses, and admissions 
of respondent. Therefore, since the evidence sought to be sub
mitted through the transcript of respondents' testimony was 
proven through several independent sources, that testimony was 
cumulative and properly excludable-11 

Respondents make an additional argument here relating to the 
conduct of this investigational hearing. They urge that not only 
was the testimony inadmissible but also that this hearing vio
lated respondents' procedural rights. Respondents point out that 
complaint counsel presided at that hearing, and in part inter
rogated Irving Bell.12 The same complaint counsel was also pros
ecutor during the adjudicative hearing. We do not agree that 
any of these circumstances resulted in any infringement of 
respondents' rights. In the first place, no allegation has been 
made that the conduct of the investigative hearing in any way 
violated Commission's rules. In the second place, none of the 

10 Iuvestigational hearings regarding Resort Car Rental, Inc., were held on three 
occasions prior to issuance of a complaint under Part III of the Commission's rules. 
Transcripts of testimony received during these investigational hearings were received 
into evidence during the adjudicutiYe proceedings in this case for the limited pu-t·pose 
of demonstrating the time that investigational hearings ,vere held, the nature of the 
hearings that were held, and the fact that the hearings were investigative and not 
adjudicative. These transcripts were not received for the truth of the contents of any 
of the testimony or exhibits referred to in the transcript. (Tr. 110) Counsel for re
spondents acknowledged this fact at the oral argument. See transcript of oral argument 
before the Commission, April 2G, 1973, p. 5 (hereinafter called Tr. Oral Argument). 

11 Sec Jolley v. Immi_qra.Uon antl Naturalizat-ion, 441 F.2d 1245 (5th Cir. 1971). 
1'l During the hearing, complaint counsel was ch..-acterized as "hearing examiner." 

'l.'his was apparently due to an error on the part of the reporter as complaint. counsel 
11evPr ref PI-red to himsplf as "hparing examiner." 
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testimony adduced at the investigational hearing was admitted' 
in the adjudicative hearing. 

We are sensitive to the responsibility of the Commission to 
guarantee fairness and due process of law. The Federal Trade 
Commission, due to its nature as an administrative agency 
charged with the enforcement of a number, of federal statutes, 
combines investigational, prosecutory and adjudicative functions 
into one body. It is of course of fundamental importance that the 
Commission take extra care to ensure that these functions are 
clearly defined and separated from one another. A review of this 
record conclusively establishes that there is no basis either in law 
or in equity to conclude that the mere duplication of roles by 
complaint counsel in these proceedings in any way prejudiced 
the rights of respondents or was in itself in violation of due proc
ess. Accordin.gly, we conclude that the respondents' objection 
must be rejected out of hand. 

II 

Admissibility in an Adjudicative Hearing of 
Certain Documents Obtained During Investigation 

Copies of lease agreements (invoices) 13 executed by respond
ents and procured by complaint counsel during the investigation 
of this case were admitted into evidence by the administrative law 
judge. These agreements were relied on in his findings that re
spondents do not rent automobiles for $1 per day or for various 
dollar amounts set out in respondents' advertisements. The find
ing by the administrative law judge that respondents' customers 
are required to sign agreements which are ambiguous, unclear 
and confusing was also based on these documents along with CX 
546 14 and testimony of consumer witnesses. 

Respondents contended that these lease agreements were not 
admissible in the adjudicative hearing for the same reasons that 
testimony adduced at the investigative hearing cannot be admitted 
at the adjudicative hearing. Respondents also objected to the 
admissibility of these lease agreements because of complaint 
counsel's alleged failure to establish their authenticity.15 

1a CX 46-a to 51-z-2G. 
14 A copy of the lease agreement executed with respondent by consumer witness 

Leonard Provenzale. 
1:. Co11iPx of tlwxc rental ag-rPeme11tx wPrP offpred b;\· complaint. counHe~ at the adjudi

cative hearing over the objection of respondents. 
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The documents at issue were obtained by counsel supporting 
the complaint pursuant to a subpoena duces t.ecum directed to 
respondents and issued on October 7, 1970. Specification 6 of this 
subpoena required the production of the originals or copies there
of, if the originals could not be produced, of all executed rental 
agreements for the months of January and June 1970. 

At the adjudicative hearing in this matter a copy of this sub
poena with specifications was identified and received into evi
dence. (Tr. 118) 

At the direction of the administrative law judge, complaint 
counsel, Mr. Gerald Wright, testified at the adjudicative hearing 
as to the circumstances under which the rental agreements had 
been produced by respondents for the Commission.16 He testified 
that pursuant to an agreement with respondents, he conducted a 
search of respondents' files on November 10, 1970, selected certain 
documents among which were the rental agreements and caused 
the copies to be made which were now being offered in evidence 
as ex 46a-51-z-26.17 

In addition to this testimony respecting the authenticity of 
these documents, the record indicates that respondents admitted 
in their answer to complaint counsel's request for admissions that 
these documents were business records and in addition that coun
sel for respondents stipulated that these documents were procured 
pursuant to a subpoena. (Tr. 149) 18 

We also reject respondents' contention that the testimony of 
Gerald Wright as to the circumstances under which he obtained 
these documents was hearsay or in any way incompetent to estab
lish a foundation for the admission of these documents. We are 
not convinced, however, that this testimony was essential in order 

16 Complaint counsel testified that respondent Bell and his attorney appeared at the 
investigational hearing on November 9, 1970, but they did not bring the lease docu
mPnts rt>questt>d in Specification (l of the above-mentioned subpoena. 

17 Complaint counsel selected 300 rental agreement· numbers for each of the months 
.TantmrJ' and .June 1970, for corporate res9011dent Brooks Rent-A-Car; and 50 rental 
agreement numbers for each month .January and June 1970 for corporate respondent 
Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car and Metropolitan Leasing, Inc. They tabulated each 
series of numbers selected. 'l'he 1,hotocopy service copied the the numbers selected and 
forwarded them by mail to the San l~rancisco Office of the Federal Trade Commission. 
Mr. Wright compared the copies with the tabulations and found them to be correct. 
'l'hP ori~inal rrntal ag-rPPll1Pllts 1wver left the offices of the Hes.;rt Car Rental System 
Inc. Mr. Grossman was present at times 1luring the selection process. (Tr. 99-182; 
414-416) 

18 In Response to Second Request for A<lmissions elated March 17, 1972, Addendum B 
attached to official transcript, respondents' answer was as follows: 
"53-55. These answering respondents admit that rental agreements are regular business 
records of Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc., and Metro
politan leasing, Inc." 
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to establish the admissibility of these documents nor do we agree 
that there was anything irregular in Mr. Wright's testifying in 
this hearing, given the circumstances of respondents' objections 
which led the administrative law judge to elicit Mr. Wright's 
testimony.rn 

Commission rules require that evidence cannot be admitted 
unless it is reliable. 20 When as here, however, copies of docu
mentary material are stipulated to be the business records of a 
respondent, are shown to have been obtained from an authentic 
source, the competence, trustworthiness and reliability of such 
documents are sufficiently established to allow admission of them 
into evidence.21 Since respondents have not challenged the rental 
agreements on the basis of materiality or relevance the Commis
sion rules which require that only "relevant, material, and re
liable" evidence be admitted, have been satisfied. The documents 
were properly admitted into evidence pursuant both to Commis
sion rules and as an exception to the hearsay rule as business 
records.22 

Respondents further contend that Gerald Wright engaged in 
alleged "intentional misconduct" which had the effect of placing 
in serious doubt the truth or veracity of his testimony. It is our 
opinion that these accusations by respondents with respect to Mr. 
Wright's conduct and the veracity of his testimony are totally 
unfounded. 

The instances in which complaint counsel supposedly engaged 
in misconduct are as follows : 

Respondents assert that Attorney Wright attempted to serve 
respondents with defective subpoenae. Before the trial in this 
matter commenced on May 15, 1972, complaint counsel sought to 
serve the individual respondent, Irving Bell, with a subpoena 
ad testifioondum and the corporate respondent, Resort Car Rental 
System, Inc., with a subpoena duces tecum. (C.C. App. Br. 7) 

1° Complaint couu:,;el eutered into the agreement to uudertake the search of re
spondents' files because of respondent:,;' failure to produce any of the documents called 
for by the Commission's subpoena. l\Ioreover again, it was respondents' counsel's re
fusal to admit the authenticity of these documents which occasioned the necessity for 
Mr. Wright to take the stand to testify as to the circumstances surrounding the identity 
of these documents .. 

!l() See Federal 'l'rade Commission Rules, Part III, Section 3.43 (b). 
21 Moreover, during the oral arguments to the Commission, couusel for respondents 

was asked whether or not the records were authentic and were kept in the regular 
course of businesR. The answer given by counsel for respondents was, "waived and 
admitted." (Tr. 64). 

22 See Federal Business Records Act, 28 U.S.C. § 732. Hee a.l.~o, U.S. v. New York 
Federal Trade Zone Operations, 405 F.2d 792, 796 (2d Cir. 1962). 
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At the adjudicative hearing, the subpoenae were found to have 
been improperly issued in accordance with Section 3.35 of the 
Commission rules and were thereupon quashed by Judge Buttle. 
(C.C. App. Br. 8; Tr. 194) 2:1 

Although respondents were justified in seeking to quash the 
subpoenae on the grounds that they were not issued in accordance 
with Section 3.35 of the rules, the fact that the subpoenae were 
so issued in this manner is hardly grounds for concluding that 
complaint counsel engaged in misconduct, intentional, inadvertent, 
or otherwise. Nor have respondents made any showing of any 
possible prejudice to them flowing from this error. 

The other instance with respect to which respondents charge 
misconduct is their claim that during the investigational hearing 
in this case complaint counsel, Gerald Wright, referred to him
self as "Hearing Examiner." An examination of the investiga
tional hearin·gs transcripts establishes that at no time during 
the investigative hearings did Gerald Wright refer to himself 
as "Hearing Examiner." 24 It is apparent from these transcripts 
that the error occurred due to the use of the term "Hearing 
Examiner" instead of "Presiding Officer" and was not the result 
of an intention to deceive by complaint counsel or anyone else 
present during that hearing. Moreover, respondents have not dem
onstrated how the erroneous use of the term "Hearing Exam
iner" during that hearing has or could in any way have preju
diced respondents or affected the truth or veracity of any 
testimony given by Gerald Wright. 

We find no basis for inferring that complaint counsel partic
ipated in any kind of misconduct. We believe the rental agree
ments were properly admitted into evidence and that no violation 
of respondents' rights took place at any time during the investiga
tion and hearing of this case. 

III 

Tabulations Extracted From Copies of Rental Agreements 

Respondents argue that a tabulation which consisted of com
pilations of figures extracted by complaint counsel from copies of 
original rental agreements executed by respondents and properly 

2-
1 The subpoena was exec11te1l by the Director for Heari11g Examiners, E<lward Creel, 

in the following manner: "Edgar ..:\. Buttle per KC." (Tr. :-12E) 
21 See trnnscript of investigationnl hearing of November !) and 10, 1970. (CX G!:i) 

8cc F.N. 10 infra. 
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received into evidence, should be excluded as "hearsay, biased, 
and self-serving." 25 

Contrary to respondents' contentions these tabulations them
selves were never admitted into evidence at the trial. Instead the 
copies of respondents' contracts from which the tabulations 
were compiled were admitted by the administrative law judge. 
(Tr. 150) Therefore respondents cannot challenge the admis
sibility of these tabulations as evidence when they never attained 
that status. 

The tabulations in question although not received into evidence 
were used as part of complaint counsel's argument in the proposed 
findings of fact. 26 All of the data in the tabulations were derived 
from respondents' lease agreements. (CX 46-a-51-z-26) The 
tabulations consisted of nothing more than a summary of the 
data contained in these lease agreements which were properly 
received into the record. Clearly, therefore, the summary was 
based entirely on properly received record evidence.27 

Respondents never challenged the methodology nor did respond
ents seek to rebut during the hearing or in any of the papers filed 
during or after the hearing, the results which followed from the 
summarization of the lease agreements by complaint counsel. 

Accordingly, we conclude that the administrative law judge's 
findings and conclusions (ID 2-44 [pp. 242-72 herein]) are accu
rate, wholly supported by the evidence in this case and should 
be adopted in full. 

IV 

Testimony of Consumer Witnesses 

Two consumer witnesses, Leonard Provenzale and Andrew W. 
Brainerd, testified on behalf of the Commission concerning their 
rental of automobiles from respondents. Both witnesses stated 
that they rented cars from Brooks Rent-A-Car due to advertise
ments that the rate of rental would be $1 per day.28 When they 
returned their cars to Brooks Rent-A-Car they were both charged 
amounts considerably more than the $1 per day charge repre
sented in the advertisements and more than each witness had 

:i:; Such compilations were extracted from CX 4G-a-51-c-26 which as previously dis
CUHHl:'tl in 81:'cl iou I were J)l'OJ:Pl'ly l'PCPi\·pt} ill ('\"i(!PnCP. 

~0 l'ropmw<l F'i11tli11g"s of Fact «:f C.C .. p. lti-17, 18-24. :1:1-:1!i. natl'd August 2G. 11172. 
27 :Moreover, the methodology of complaint counsel's computation is manifestly rea

sonable and persuasive. (See ID 44-48 [pp. 272-7(3 herein]) 
28 Brainerd 245-266, Provimzalc 201-239. 
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estimated the cost of the rental would be. 29 This testimony and 
the copies of Mr. Provenzale's rental agreement were partially 
relied on by the administrative law judge in his findings that 
respondents engaged in deceptive advertising and used ambigu
ous printed form rental agreements (e.g., ID 27-31 [pp. 262-65 
herein]). 

Respondents assert that the testimony of these consumer wit
nesses should have been excluded because it was based on docu
ments never received into evidence and because consumer wit
ness, Andrew Brainerd, testified that he had no independent 
recollection of certain lease documents. The administrative law 
judge denied respondents' motion to strike this testimony. He also 
admitted in evidence over respondents' objections two copies of 
the rental agreement executed by Leonard Provenzale with 
respondents. 30 

The testimony of Leonard Provenzale was not "based on docu
ments never introduced into evidence" as asserted by respondents. 
Copies of the rental agreement entered into by Leonard Proven
zale were received into evidence as Commission Exhibit 546. 
(Tr. 239) This case was reopened by order on July 17, 1972, to 
receive into the record a letter containing certain testimony of 
Mr. Provenzale to the effect that the originals of the rental agree
ment were lost. 31 

The administrative law judge did not err in admitting copies 
of this rental agreement into testimony. Although the production 
of the original documents would have been preferable if available, 
"the thought is here not that a certain kind of evidence was ab
solutely necessary but that a certain kind is to be used if avail
able. If it is not available, then it is not insisted upon."32 Leonard 
Provenzale's testimony in the form of a letter dated May 27, 
1972, adequately explains the loss of the original documents.33 

These copies of the original contracts were properly identified 

2'J When Mr. Braineru returned the car after four days rental he believed that the 
charge would be approximately $14 but instead he was charged $30.90 (Tr. 256) ; Mr. 
Provenzdale testified: "The dollar figures-I figured it out and it would be $1 per day 
for 5 days, that was $6 and 13f per mile for 125 miles which was $16.25 * * * The, 
insurance was $1.50 so the grand total was $22.75. Respondent informed Mr. Proven
zale that he owed them $45.00 (Tr. 217). 

ao ex 546. 
31 It was stipulated on July 13, 1972, by respondents' counsel and complaint counsel 

that the letter from Leonard Provenzale would be testimony of Mr. Provenzale if the 
above matter were reopened and Mr. Provenzale testified. 

32 4 WIG MORE ON EVIDENCE, Section 1192 (3d Ed. 1940). 
33 'l'he administrative law judge was satisfied with Mr. Provenzale's explanation, as 

is confirme<l by the Order Denying Motion to Strike of .1uly 26, 1972. 
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and authenticated. (Tr. 210-211, 218-219) Therefore the admis
sion of the copies into evidence and the administrative law judge's 
reliance on them was proper. 34 

Although the rental agreement executed by respondents and 
consumer witness Andrew W. Brainerd were not admitted into 
evidence, Brainerd's testimony concerned his own perceptions 
and interpretation of respondents' advertisements and rental 
rates and his experience in renting a car from respondents. 
Where a witness' testimony is based on his own perceptions and 
not on documents such as the contracts here, and did not consist 
of out-of-court statements offered for the truth of the facts 
contained therein, admission of such testimony does not violate 
the hearsay rule as asserted by respondents. 35 

Accordingly we conclude that the administrative law judge did 
not err in refusing to strike the testimony of these two witnesses. 
He was fully entitled to admit the testimony for whatever weight 
is should be assigned. 

Moreover, in making his findings and conclusions on the decep
tive nature of respondents' advertisements and the ambiguity 
of respondents' lease agreements, it is clear that the adminis
trative law judge took into account all the evidence and in no 
instance relied exclusively on the testimony of the consumer wit
nesses. Indeed the administrative law judge specified that his con
clusion that respondents' advertising created this impression can 
"be sufficiently established from a reading of the advertisements 
without the testimony of consumer witnesses." (ID 12 [p. 249 
herein] ) In his finding that respondents' advertisements repre
sented that respondents rented automobiles for $1 per day ( ID 
13-17 [pp. 250-54 herein]), the administrative law judge relied 
both on the testimony of Mr. Provenzale and Mr. Brainerd as 
well as on numerous Commission exhibits,36 the symbol $1 per 
day and the trade name "dollar a day" and their placement in the 
advertisements (ID 12 [p. 249 herein]) as supporting his find
ing that respondents' advertisements were deceptive. 

The administrative law judge's findings that respondents' 
printed form rental agreements were ambiguous and unclear were 
similarly based both on his conclusions with respect to the agree-

3 ·1 See 4 WIGl\IORI<J ON EVIDENCE, Section 1194, 1277-78 (3d Ed. 1940). Of. Rash 
v. Spiegel's Deposit Banlc & Trust Co., 91 F. Supp. 825, 827 (ED Ky. 1950). 

35 See 2 WIGMORE ON EVIDENCE, Sections 650-65!) (3d Ed. 1940). 
30 CX-25-A-25-ll, ex 26-A to 26-P, ex 27-A to 27-Z, W-A to 29-T,CX 548-A 

to ;;48-B, ex ao-A, to 30-X, ex :n-A to :H-1', ex 2:), ex :m, ex 37, ex rn2, 
ex 133 & 134, ex 141, ex 142 & 143, ex 144 & ex 145. 
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ments themselves as well as on the testimony of the two con
sumer witnesses. 37 

Therefore, even if the testimony of the two consumer witnesses 
had been excluded, the findings of the administrative law judge 
are appropriate and are sufficiently supported by the record. 

The initial decision and order are fully supported by the find
ings and conclusions of the administrative law judge and by the 
record in this case and we reject the contentions of complaint 
counsel and respondents as to the claimed errors of the adminis
trative law judge in his admission of evidence. 

V 

Issuance of a Press Release by the Commission 

The Commission issued a complaint regarding Resort Car 
Rental and other respondents in this matter under Part II of its 
rules on June 1, 1970. A press release was issued in connection 
with that complaint on that date. (RX 2) The Commission issued 
a revised complaint under Part III of its rules on August 26, 
1971. No other press release was issued by the Commission in 
connection with the Part III complaint. 

Respondents assert that the publication of the press release of 
June 1, 1970, with regard to the Federal Trade Commission's in
tention to issue a complaint under the consent order procedures, 
had the effect of foreclosing from the respondents the availability 
of non-adjudicative procedures as a possible solution to the issues 
which had arisen between the parties. The press release allegedly 
forced a full adjudicative hearing "in an effort to absolve an 
image created by the Commission." (App. Br. 27) Respondents 
also assert that further information concerning this matter was 
given by the Federal Trade Commission in the form of a news 
release published in the Las Vegas Journal Review on Tuesday, 
January 12, 1971. These ·press releases, according to respondents, 
violated Commission rules. 

The assertion by respondents that the press release of June 1, 

:17 CX '..W-a-Gl-z-21i; <.'X G41i. ID 27-:n [pi,. 262-G::i herein]. An examination 
of this evidence also indicates that even though the phrase "50 miles daily minimum" 
is contained in thosl~ contracts in bold letters in the middle left hand side of the page, 
it is contained in a "box" containing spaces for information wholly unrelated to the 
rental rate. Tllis information contained on the contract is wholly unrelated to anything 
in the rental rate box and more particularly is wholly unrelated to the "cent per mi. 
inc. ~as" section of the "rental rate" box, which is the charge to which it relateR. 
In addition, on its face, the phrase "50 miles daily minimum" is not self-explanatory. 
(Il> 28, 11. 14 [p. 2(ia hnein]) 
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1970, foreclosed a possible nonadjudicative course of action is con
trary to the facts and to the procedures expressly provided by the 
Commission rules.38 Indeed in the instant matter, consent ne·go
tiations were sought by complaint counsel with respondents and 
were held subsequent to the press release of June 1, 1970.3n The 
negotiations however, did not lead to settlement of this case. 

The press release issued by the Federal Trade Commission in 
regard to this matter was issued in accordance with the rules 
and was so authorized as a factual news release.40 In the case of 
FTC v. Cinderella Car,e,er ,and Finishing School, 41 the court ruled 
that the Federal Trade Commission is authorized to issue factual 
news releases concerning pending proceedings before it.42 

The issuance of the press release by the Commission on July 1, 
1970, was not a violation of Part II of the Commission's rules as 
asserted by respondents. Although Section 2.8 ( c) of those rules 
does provide that "investigational hearings shaU not be public" 
(unless otherwise ordered by the Commisison), they do not pro
vide as asserted by respondents, that notice of the Commission's 
intention to issue a complaint under its consent order procedures 
shall not be published. This rule protects the non-public nature of 
investigational hearings. This section does not in any way prohibit 
the Commission from notifying the public of complaints and 

:18 l'ur~mant to Hection :!.i:I~ of tlw l<''l'C rules a 11roposet1 responuent after rece1vmg 
notice that the Commission int(•mls to issue a formal vroceeding recciV('S an oppor
tunity to execute an appropriate agreement for consideration by the Commi11sion. 
l'ursuan t to H<•ction 2.3;; of the CommiR11io11 rules, notices and proposed forms of 
complaint and or1lers under Section 2.31 are included in the vublic records of the 
Commission and will be the subject of releases to the Commission's Office of l'ublic 
Information. All negotiations and communications under Sections 2.32, 2.33 and 2.34 
constitute a vart of the confidential recor1ls of the Commission except to the extent 
ot herwisc pro,•id<>d therein. 

:in Consent negotiations were held between respondent and complaint counsel in the 
:-;an Fra11dsco 1:1';..:lonal Officl' followin;..: tlw pn•ss rPIPas<'. No a;..:rPemPnt was reaclu-'d 
and the Commission on October L 1970, coni:;idered and rejected respondents offer of 
settlement, (lated .July 7, 1!)72. (Ans. Br. 2) 

•IO Sec Federal '.rrade Commission rule, Hection 2.B;:i. 

11 404 Ji'.2d 1308 (D.C. Cir. l!HiS). 
43 'l'he court stated in Cinderella Career an<l Pi-nfall ing f:Jchools that, "since the 

Commission is charged h.Y the board del<'gation of power to it to eliminate unfair or 
deceptive business practices in the public interest, and since it is specificall;v author
izPd to make public information acquired by it we conclude that there is in fact and 
law authority in the Commission. acting in the public interest. to alert the 1rnblic to 
i-mspected Yiolations of Ia w hr factual 11rpss relpast•s wheneYcr the Commission should 
have reason to be!ie,·e that a respo1Hlent is engaged in activities made unlawful by the 
act which has resulted in the initiation of action by the Commission. The press relPase 
predicated upon official action of the CommiRsion, constitutes a warning of caution to 
the public. the welfare of which the Commission is in these matters charged." 404 
F.2d at 1014. 



234 Opinion 

orders.43 

The Commission's rules which require that investigational 
hearings not be public were not violated with respect to an alleged 
"news release" published in the Las Vegas Review Journal on 
January 12 1971. The news release of June 1, 1970, was the only 
release made by the Commission in this matter. The article in the 
Las Vegas Review Journal, referred to by respondents, contained 
the same information that was printed in the Federal Trade 
Commission's news release of June 1, 1970. The only additional 
information contained in that news article was a statement by 
Michael Bernstein, former complaint counsel here, that the mat
ter had gone on a long time and "we expect some kind of action 
in the very near future." H This statement of complaint counsel 
did not violate any Commission rules as it did not disclose any 
information concerning nonpublic investigational hearings. The 
Federal Trade Commission gave no additional announcements 
regarding nonadjudicative Commission procedures. 

The Commission's issuance of the press release in this matter 
was not a violation of any Commission rules and did not create a 
substantial detriment or .prejudice to respondents in this matter. 

VI 

Initial Decision and Order 

Respondents made a generalized assertion that the initial deci
sion is "unsupported by the evidence" and that the provisions of 
the proposed order are "overly broad, vague and unenforcable." 
(Res. App. Br. 8) We have carefully reviewed the findings and 
conclusions of the administrative law judge together with the rec
ord in this case. We conclude that contrary to respondents' con
tentions, the Findings of Fact and the Conclusions of Law made by 
the administrative law judge are fully supported by the evidence 
in this case. 

We also conclude that the proposed or.der of the administrative 
law judge is amply supported by the record in this case and that 
its provisions are essential if respondents' law violations are to 

•1:i Section 2.:3G of the Commhu,:ion's Rules of Practice Sl)Ccifically provides: 
Notice of proposed adju1licative procee11ings included in public records.-Notices and 

vroposed form:-; of complaints and orders under SPction 2.:n are included in the public 
record:-; of the Comrni:-;:-;ion and will be the Hubject of rl'leases through the Commission's 
Office of Public Information. Ordinaril.r, there will be no additional release if and when 
a complaint is issued unlln the Commb;sion's adjudicative procedul"l'S. All negotiations 
and commuuicatioris under *~ 2.32, 2.3:3 and 2.34 will constitute part of the con
fidential rpcor1h; of tlw Commis:-;ion, except to the extent otherwise specifically provided 
therein. 

HRX 4. 
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be adequately prevented in the future. The essence of respondents' 
deceptions found by the administrative law judge to be violative 
of Section 5 were summarized by the law judge as follows: 

***respondents have failed in their representations, advertising and con
tracts to give equal emphasis to the cost disadvantages of their car rental 
offers comparable to the lower cost advantages. Above all, the advertised 
day rental bargains is accentuated in the size of the print and advertising 
placement in contrast to the deemphasis of required payment for minimum 
mileage and necessary insurance or other rental charges as elements of the 
total rental cost * * * (ID 34 [p. 266 herein]) 

The administrative law judge pointed out that among other 
things respondents do not clearly inform customers in advertise
ments or in contracts that in addition to a daily rate for use of 
the automobile and a cent per mile charge, there will be a daily 
insurance charge, and an additional minimum charge of 50 miles 
per day, at the cents per mile charge, whether or not the miles 
are actually driven. ( ID 17 [p. 254 herein] ) As to insurance 
charges, respondents' contracts do not clearly inform the pur
chaser of the very limited nature of coverage. (e.g., CX 47-A, 
47-B) 45 

The administrative law judge concluded correctly that "there 
was an obligation upon respondents in renting or leasing cars 
to accentuate in the same degree every term of a car rental offer 
or contract, so that all conditions of rental may not be reasonably 
overlooked." (ID. 34 [p. 266 herein]) 

In order to remedy these deceptions, the administrative law 
judge entered an order which requires respondents to make af
firmative disclosures in advertising and rental agreements of all 
charges and conditions imposed for rental of automobiles. Re
spondents are further required to discontinue using the trade 
name "Dollar-A-Day" ( or similar designations), unless all charges 
and conditions imposed for rental are represented. 

Respondents objected to various provisions of this order. 
First, they contend that the disclosures of rental charges which 

they are required to make by the order 46 are unworkable and 

45 ID. 22-24 [pp. 258-59 herein] 
46 This section of the order requires respondents to cease and desist from : "l. 

Representing, directly or by implication, any price, fee, or amount which is imposed 
for rental of a motor vehicle unless such price, fee, or amount includes all charges 
or conditions which are imposed for or on rental of such vehicle at such price, fee, 
or amount." The order defines charges or "conditions" as: (a) a daily or other 
periodic charge, (b) a cents per mile charge, (c) a minimum charge of the cent;; 
per mile charge whether or not the miles are actually driven, (d) a charge for 
gasoline, oil and repairs if such are not included in (a) or (b) above, and (e) any 
charge for insurance. ( Subsection 1) 
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could result in conceivably 625 total charges that would have to 
be advertised if respondents were renting five different motor 
vehicles. (Res. App. Br. 30) 

Respondents' interpretation of the order is in error. The order 
does not require rates be advertised at all, or that all rates avail
able be advertised. It requires only that if respondents advertise 
a vehicle rental rate, all charges and conditions which are im
posed pursuant to rental of that auto also be included in the ad
vertisement. Contrary to respondents' contentions, compliance 
with this section would not be impossible but would only require 
respondents to cease doing· business in an unfair and deceptive 
manner. 

Respondents further object to Subsection 3 of the order which 
requires them to cease and desist from "using any title, corporate 
name, trade name, or other designation (including but not limited 
to 'dollar-a-day') which represents, directly or by implication any 
price, fee, or amount which is imposed for rental of a motor ve
hicle, unless such representation includes all charges or conditions 
which are imposed for rental of such vehicle, in conformity with 
the requirements of paragraph 1 of this Order." Respondents 
assert that any attempt to implement this particular requirement 
would be "arbitrary, capricious and unreasonable." (Res. App. 
Br. 30) 

In our view, respondents' argument is without merit. There is 
ample factual and legal precedent for excision of the trade name 
in this matter. 

Commission power to order that a trade name be excised is 
well established by legal authority. Just as the administrative law 
judge found here, the Federal Trade Commission found in the 
case of Bakers Frianchise Cor(f)oratfon v. FTC, 302 F.2d 258 (3d 
Cir. 1962), that a trade name used in conjunction with claims 
made in advertising created an impression which substantial 
evidence proved to be false. The court in upholding the Commis
sion's excision ·of the word "diet" from the trade name "Lite Diet" 
bread in Bakers Franchise, stated: 

The matter of choice of remedy is one for the Commission, Jacob Siegel 
Co. v. FTC, supra at 611-12. We cannot say that its discretion was improperly 
exercised in this case.47 

The Commission has excised trade names in a number of past 
decisions. See e.g., Carter Products, Inc. v. FTC, 268 F.2d 461 

41 302 F.211 at 262. 
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(9th Cir. 1969) (excision of word "liver" from trade name 
"Carter's Little Liver Pills") ; El Moro Cig.ar Co. v. FTC, 107 F.2d 
429 (4th Cir. 1939) (excision of word "Havana" from the trade 
name "Havana Counts") ; MiasZand Duraleather Co. v. FTC, 34 
F.2d 733 (3d Cir. 1929) (excision of "Duraleather" from trade 
name); Virginia Dare Stores Cor<p., 64 F.T.C. 1220 (1964) (ex
cision of word "Atlantic Mills" or "Mills" from trade name). 

As the administrative law judge points out, a trade name is a 
valuable· business asset and excision should only be ordered in 
cases, such as the present one, where there are not less drastic 
means to eliminate the deception. Jac,ob Siegel Co. v. FTC, 327 
U.S. 608 (1964) (ID 50). In certain cases for instance, qualifying 
language as a means to eliminate the deception has been used 
short of excision. Where qualifying language amounts to a con
tradiction in terms, however, it would have the effect of com
pletely confusing the consuming public and will not be considered 
as an alternative to excision. Bakers Franchise Corp. v. FTC, 
su.pm. The court in Bakers Franchise observed that the continu
ing use of the trade name "Lite Diet" with the qualifying phrase 
"not a low calorie bread" or "not low in calories" would be a con
tradiction in terms and therefore not an acceptable alternative to 
excision. The continued use of the trade name "dollar-a-day" 
with such qualifying language as "no vehicle may be rented for 
a dollar a day" would be just as contradictory and confusing to 
the consuming public as the qualifying language rejected in 
Bakers Fr.anchise, supra. 

In the case of Virginia Dare Stores, siipra, the Commission 
ordered the excision of the term "Mills" from respondent's trade 
name. It was found that this trade name falsely represented to 
the public in an affirmative manner that the company owned and 
operated a mill or factory in which at least some of the clothing 
and other merchandise sold by it were manufactured.48 The Com
mission considered the alternative course of requiring respondent 
to use some words of qualification or explanation in conjunction 
with the trade name in order to dispel misrepresentation or decep
tion. It was concluded by the Commission, however, that in a 
case such as this where the proposed words or qualification are in 
complete and absolute contradiction with the words which convey 

48 64 F.T.C. 1220 (1964). 
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the deceptive and misleading impression, excision is the appro
priate remedy.49 

In the instant case, the essence of respondents' deception, the 
misleading question of respondents' rental rates, is embodied in 
its trade name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car" and in its 
corporate name "Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car, Inc." Re
spondents' trade name and corporate name were a prominent and 
integral part of the· advertisements which respondents caused to 
be placed in brochures, newspapers and magazines.50 (ID 9-12 
[pp. 248-51 herein] ) It would be impossible and a totally vain 
act to prohibit respondents from falsely advertising auto rental 
rates and at the same time permit them to continue to use a trade 
and corporate name which contain the pricing deception sought 
to be prohibited by the order. 

Counsel for respondents offered no evidence that would rebut 
the conclusion that the vast majority of respondents' contracts 
involved rentals pursuant to the "50 miles minimum per day" 
rate structure or the fact that purchase of collision insurance 
from respondents is virtually mandatory due to its purchase in 
a very high percentage of cases. ( ID 22 [p. 258 herein]) Re
spondents admitted in their answer that they impose a cents per 
mile charge.51 

The facts in the instant case are directly analogous to the facts 
in Bakers Frianchise Corp. and Virginia Dare St-ores Corp., swpra, 
where excision was authorized. In those cases the trade names 
were excised because they were found to be in complete contra
diction to the facts found to exist.52 Here, respondents' trade name 
misleads consumers into believing cars are rented for $1 per day. 
Since substantial additional charges are imposed by respondents, 
the dollar per day trade name is in complete contradiction to the 
actual price charged for car rental. Just as in he aforementioned 
cases, any words of disclaimer as opposed to the remedy of exci-

40 64 F.T.C. at 1235. Sec also El Moro Co. v. FTC, supra, where the misuse of the 
word "Havana" could not be cured by the sentence, "1.'hese cigars are made in the 
United States entirely and only of domestic tobacco," 107 F.2d at 430. 

50 Respondents admit in their Answer, Paragraph 4, that they induce rental of 
automobiles through various statements and representations concerning the amounts 
charged for automobile rental; see also, CX 458 A and B, CX 30 A-X, CX 31 A-T, 
CX 23, CX 3G, CX 37 [advertisements by respondents Brooks Rent-A-Car Inc.] CX 
132, CX 133 and CX 134 [advertisements by respondent Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent
A-Car, Inc.] CX 141, 142 and CX 143, CX 144 and 145 [advertisements by respondent 
Metropolitan Leasing Inc.]. 

61 Respondents answer Paragraph 6(a) (1). 
63 In Bakers Franchise, supra, the bread sold by respondents was not low caloric 

though called "Lite Diet." In Virginia Dare Stores, aupra, the word "mills" was 
used where no mill was owned by respondent. 
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sion would be insufficient to cancel the deceptive and misleading 
impression created by the trade name. The trade name, "dollar
a-day" by its nature has a decisive connotation for which any 
qualifying language would result in a contradiction in terms. 

The deceptive practices found to exist in the instant case 
clearly call for the remedy of excision and prohibitions on the 
type of representations made by respondents in advertising and in 
contractual arrangements. The administrative law judge did not 
err in so including these provisions in the order. 

The appeals of both parties are denied and the initial decision 
is adopted as the decision of the Commission. An appropriate 
order will be entered. 

FINAL ORDER 

This matter having been heard by the Commission upon re
spondents' appeal from the initial decision, and upon complaint 
counsel's appeal from that part of the initial decision rejecting 
certain testimony adduced at an investigational hearing as inad
missible; and 

The Commission having considered the oral arguments of 
counsel, their briefs and the whole record; 

It is ordered: 
( 1) That the initial decision be, and it hereby is, adopted 

as the decision of the Commission; 
(2) That the appeal of respondents be, and it hereby is, 

denied; and that the appeal of complaint counsel be, and it 
hereby is, denied ; 

(3) That the following order be and hereby is entered: 

ORDER 

It is ordered, That the respondents Resort Car Rental System, 
Inc., Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent-A-Car., 
and Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., corporations, trading under the 
above trade or corporate names or under any other trade or corpo
rate name or names, their respective successors and assigns and 
their respective officers, and Irving Bell, individually and as an 
officer of said corporations (hereinafter referred to as "respond
ents") and respondents' agents, representatives and employees, 
directly or through any co_rporation, subsidiary, division or other 
device, in connection with the advertising, renting, or offering for 
rent of motor vehicles, in commerce, as "commerce" is defined in 
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the Federal Trade Commission Act, do forthwith cease and desist 
from: 

1. Representing, directly or by implication, any price, fee, 
or amount which is imposed for rental of a motor vehicle 
unless such price, fee, or amount includes all charges or 
conditions which are imposed for or on rental of such vehicle 
at such price, fee, or amount. 

The term "charges or conditions" means any charge or 
condition necessary to the rental of a motor vehicle, which 
is not :strictly at the option of the person renting the vehicle. 
Examples of such charges and conditions are: 

a. a daily or other periodic charge ; 
b. a cents per mile charge ; 
c. a minimum charge at the cents-per-mile charge, 

whether or not the miles are actually driven; 
d. a charge for gasoline, oil, and repairs if such are 

not included in (a) or (b) above; 
e. any charge for insurance. 

Pr'.ovided, however, That 
(i) (a) and (b) above may be stated separately from 

each other if there is no other charge or condition, and 
if (a) and (b) are in equally large type and in close 
proximity to each other; 

(ii) any charge made for collision insurance must 
be included in said representation if such insurance 
charge is not strictly at the option of the person renting 
the vehicle; a charge for collision insurance shall not be 
deemed to be "strictly at the option of the person renting 
the vehicle' if any evidence of other insurance must be 
provided to respondents in order not to purchase said 
collision insurance ; 

(iii) the coverage of collision insurance, whether op
tional, mandatory, or included in the rental agreement 
price, shall be clearly described in the rental agreement. 

2. Misrepresenting, in any manner, any method of compu
tation of a charge, charge, or condition imposed for rental 
of a mot.or vehicle. 

3. Using any title, corporate name, trade name, or other 
designation (including but not limited to "Dollar-A-Day") 
which represents, directly or by implication, any price, fee, 
or amount which is imposed for rental of a motor vehicle, 
unless such representation includes all charges or conditions 
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which are imposed for rental of such vehicle, in conformity 
with the requirements of Paragraph One of this order. 

4. Executing or causing to be executed, any written agree
ment purporting to obligate a consumer to pay at that or any 
future time any consideration for the rental of a motor ve
hicle, where the language and format of the written agree
ment does not conform with the requirements of Paragraphs 
One through Three of this order. If any minimum mileage 
charge is imposed at the cents-per-mile charge pursuant to 
said agreement, said agreement shall contain the following 
statement in capital letters in at least eight point bold type, 
next to and clearly associated with that place on said agree
ment which provides for entry of the cents per mile rate: 

"NOTICE: A MINIMUM CHARGE OF (e.g., 50) MILES 
PER (e.g., DAY), AT THE CENTS-PER-MILE CHARGE 
WILL BE IMPOSED, WHETHER OR NOT THE MILES 
ARE ACTUALLY DRIVEN." 

It is further ordered, That respondents notify the Commission 
at least thirty ( 30) days prior to any proposed change in the 
corporate respondents, such as dissolution, assignment or sale 
resulting in the emergence of a successor corporation, the creation 
or dissolution of subsidiaries or any other change in the corpo
ration which may affect compliance obligations arising out of the 
order. 

It is further ,ordered, That respondents shall forthwith dis
tribute a copy of this order to each of their respective operating 
subsidiaries, divisions, and offices, and to each employee, present 
or future. 

It is further ordered, That the individual respondent named 
herein promptly notify the Commission of the discontinuance 
of any of his present businesses or employment and of his affilia
tion with a new business or employment. Such notice shall in
clude said respondent's current business address and a statement 
as to the nature of the business or employment in which he is 
engaged as well as a description of his duties and responsibilities. 

It is further ordered, That the complaint is dismissed as to 
the respondent Bell Rent-A-Car, Inc., pursuant to complaint 
counsels' Proposed Finding 25 which has been adopted herein. 

It i,s further ordered, That respondents Resort Car Rental Sys
tem, Inc., Brooks Rent-A-Car, Inc., Brooks Dollar-A-Day Rent
A-Car, Inc., Metropolitan Leasing, Inc., and Irving Bell shall, 
within sixty (60) days after service of this order upon them, 
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file a written report with the Commission, signed by said re
spondents, setting forth in detail the manner and form of their 
compliance with the order to cease and desist hereby adopted 
by the Commission. 

IN THE MATTER OF 

BENEFICIAL CORPORATION, ET AL. 

Docket 8922. Interlocutory Order, July 31, 1973. 

Order denying respondents' motion to withdraw this matter from adjudication 
for the purposes of ( 1) entering into a consent order concerning 
certain issues in the case and (2) obtaining dismissal of complaint 
as to one respondent. 

A pp,earances 

For the Commission: D. Fix, R. Galler, R. Friedman. 
For the respondents: Timothy J. Bfoomfield, George W. Wise, 

Hogan & Harts.on, Washington, D.C. and Edgar T. Higgins, Bene
ficial Management Corporation, Morristown, New Jersey. 

ORDER DENYING MOTION TO WITHDRAW PROCEEDING FROM 

ADJUDICATION 
I 

This matter is before the Commission upon a certification by 
the administrative law judge, filed July 13, 1973, of a motion by 
respondents to withdraw this matter from adjudication. 

Respondents' motion was filed July 3, 1973, pursuant to Section 
2.34 ( d) of the Commission's Rules of Practice. Withdrawal from 
adjudication is sought by respondents for the purpose of entering 
into a consent order with respect to certain of the issues in this 
case, and for the purpose of obtaining dismissal of the complaint 
as to respondent Beneficial Corporation. Complaint counsel have 
opposed respondents' motion, and the administrative law judge 
recommends that it be denied. 

Section 2.34 ( d) of the Commission's Rules of Practice provides 
that withdrawal from adjudication shall be permitted only in 
"exceptional and unusual circumstances" and "for good cause 
shown." Respondents argue that "since additional issues precluded 
disposition of the entire matter by consent, Respondents have not 
heretofore been afforded an opportunity to seek disposition of the 
previously agreed-upon issues by consent." (Motion of Respond
ents', page 2.) We find this contention somewhat strained, inas-




